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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

The government continues to bring in a number of policy
changes that will have far reaching impact on the growth
of the Indian economy. The second half of the year started
seeing the positive effects of policies like GST etc. The
industrial and automotive sector also bounced back with
corporates reporting growth in demand.
Government’s thrust on improving the transportation network across all
sectors – road, railways and aviation should also have positive impact on
the economy.On the global front, economic and political uncertainties
prevailed in number of countries. During the year gone by, global raw
material prices rose significantly affecting costs. JK Fenner continued to
work on risk mitigation by widening its vendor base as well as working on
alternate raw materials.
The Company strengthened its R&D capabilities to develop and introduce
new and innovative products for various domestic and international
customers. With its focus on technology and widening product portfolio,
JK Fenner is poised to take advantage of the growth opportunities.
I thank all our shareholders, stakeholders and most of all our employees
for their commitment to meet the goals of the Company
Raghupati Singhania
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE

In the year gone by overall consumption across sectors
bounced back and with two successive years of reasonable
monsoon, the farm economy was also stable. This led to
growth of the automotive industry across all sectors, in turn
giving a positive boost to the component industry. The
industrial sector also remained stable.
However, due to changes in environmental laws in some countries, supply
of critical raw material was curtailed leading to an increase in raw material
prices. The adverse impact of this to some extent was mitigated by use
of alternate material and innovation in design & operational technologies
which reduced consumption of certain inputs.
On the energy front, JK Fenner continues to explore methods to reduce
costs. It has commissioned a 3 MW solar plant at Gajjawada village near
Hyderabad. With this, 80% of the Company’s energy needs are from
captive renewable sources, both wind and solar.
The Company continues to work on increasing its reach and range across
product categories. It has added a number of new retail points for easier
availability more particularly in the rural markets. New products like
Hydraulic Hoses, Timing Belts, Silicon Hoses, Next Generation Seals and
Moulded Poly V were added to the distribution network.
With these various initiatives, the Company continues to position itself
across market segments to take advantage of growing markets.
Vikrampati Singhania
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Financial Analysis 2017-18
Net Sales (` in Cr.)

FY15

FY16

FY17

FY18
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511.87

550.07

582.94

633.12

Operating Profit (PBIDT) (` in Cr.)
FY15

120.99

FY16

132.06

FY17

147.18

FY18

151.33

Profit Before Tax (` in Cr.)
FY15
FY16
FY17
FY18

54.20
66.40
82.12
87.63
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An award from Frost & Sullivan & FICCI

An award from KOEL
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Directors’ Report

able to leverage robust growth in the automotive industry and
grew its OE business by 21% over the previous year, close to
double the growth of Industry.

TO THE MEMBERS
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual
Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2018.
FINANCIAL RESULTS

On the raw material front, China closed down some of its
manufacturing plants due to environmental reasons, affecting
availability of certain key raw materials. This resulted in increase
of prices of raw materials like synthetic rubber, carbon black

(` in Crores)

Sales & Other Income

688.90

Profit before Finance cost & Depreciation (PBIDT)

151.33

Profit After Tax (PAT)

57.96

Surplus brought forward

50.71

Surplus carried to Balance Sheet

95.23

and chemicals in a significant way impacting your Company’s
cost structure.

DIVIDEND
During the year under review, a Dividend of 1% to the
preference shareholder of the Company on 70,00,000
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) of ` 100/each issued on 26th April 2017 was paid. The total Preference
Shares Dividend outgo was ` 78,47,978 (inclusive of Dividend
Distribution Tax of ` 13,27,430).
Your Directors are pleased to recommend a final dividend of
`15/- per Equity share of ` 10/- each (i.e., 150%) on the equity
Share Capital of ` 2.48 Crores, which together with the interim
dividend of ` 30/- per Equity share aggregates to ` 45/- per
Equity share (450%) for the financial year ended 31st March
2018. The total Dividend outgo will be ` 11.17 Crores (inclusive
of a Dividend Tax of ` 2.27 Crores).

Emerging Leader Excellence in Operation Management Award from CII

To combat this challenge, your Company continues to work
on cost reduction initiatives as well as necessary product price
revisions. Development of alternate materials from the vast
library of rubber compounds available within the Company
has enabled us to address the raw material cost increase and
availability issues.
Your Company enhanced its focus on Technology and
Innovation related projects. These projects are aimed to

OPERATIONS

address the gaps in the product range to meet the customer

During the last year and half, India has seen a number of

larger automotive & industrial segments.

changes that will in the long run lead to a structural correction
of the economy. This year the implementation of the Goods
and Service Tax had a negative impact on Indian manufacturing
industry during the first half of the year, in turn leading to slow

needs and thereby enable your Company to participate in

In continuation of the journey towards manufacturing
excellence across all plants, your Company completed yet
another year of active participation in various ACMA clusters

down of GDP at 6.6%.

of manufacturing processes, new product development and

Against this backdrop, your Company’s sales grew by 9% during

gain exposure through increased interaction with best in class

the year. While the industrial market was slow, J.K.Fenner was

companies. During this journey, your Company has also won
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quality. This has helped our plants to continually improve and

various national awards, some of the important ones are:
(a)

Madurai unit received the following accolades:-

(i)

Emerging Leader Excellence in Operation Management
(Sector-Auto) award from CII.

(ii)
(iii)
(b)

OIL SEALS
The sale of Oil seals during the year 2017-18 grew about 17%.

Silver Award for Best Manufacturing Strategies &

J.K. Fenner continues to work on enhancing the performance

Practices from Quality Council of India.

and life of its product offerings in Oil seals. This is in line with

Nilakottai unit received “Best Cluster Company” award

the changes in the vehicle warranty being offered by OEMs.

in quality circle care study competition organised by
Quality Circle forum of India Chennai Chapter.
Sriperumbudur unit bagged “Best Cluster Company“
award from ACMA.
(d)

improve its market share.

Best Transformed Company award from ACMA.

from ACMA and 3 Gold awards and one Silver award

(c)

at an optimum cost. This initiative has helped the Company

Hyderabad 1 unit bagged “Silver-Certificate of Merit” in
India Manufacturing Excellence Awards-2017 instituted
by Frost & Sullivan & FICCI.

Your Company is also continuously enhancing its ‘reach’ in

The Company has also successfully developed Oil seals for
certain critical applications like gas shock absorbers and
power steering applications for commercial vehicles during
the year. These actions have in turn resulted in new business
opportunities for your Company.
The Sales, Technology and Innovation teams are working
jointly to develop necessary products and technologies in Oil
seals to continue robust growth.

various States in India and has been taking necessary action to
strengthen the distribution channels to penetrate deeper. Your

ENGINEERING PRODUCTS
The Engineering Business significantly improved sales during
the year 2017-18 with a growth of 24%. During the year, a
number of new products were introduced in the areas of Gear
Boxes, Geared Motors, Parallel Helical Geared Motor besides
enhancing its range in Aerators.
The product portfolio is aligned to the Government’s initiative
on speeding up Infrastructure Projects and also developing
Aquaculture Industry to meet rising sea food consumption,
both domestically as well as exports.
The Company has taken a major drive in expanding the

Best Cluster Company Award from ACMA

Company continues to widen its product portfolio to meet
varied demands of the customers. These actions of ‘Reach and
Range’ have enabled the Company to maintain its leadership
position.

network by aligning the dealerships for new products.
EXPORTS
While the business development processes progressed well
in USA, during this year the Company shifted its focus on

BELTS

European markets. The Company has successfully offered total

Belts continued to account for a significant revenue in the
product portfolio of J.K. Fenner and it enjoys a strong position
in both Auto after markets as well as Industrial segments.

solutions for industrial power transmission with a wider product

The Company has developed a new range of belts in

our products will get higher visibility in the industrial markets

automotive segment which offers higher life of the product

in these geographies.

basket consisting of belts, hoses and engineering products to
new distributors in the UK and Europe. Through this channel,
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
This year your Company has further strengthened the R&D
team by infusing talent. Furthermore, the development
capability has been enhanced by adding new software and
validation equipments.
With

a

view

to

continuously

serve

customers

with

technologically superior products, JK Fenner directed its
research and development initiative to manufacture valueadded products that address diverse market needs. These
activities have helped to strengthen the Company’s business
model in addition to accelerating market responsiveness and
Best Manufacturing Strategies and Practices award from QCI

Significant head way was also made with one of the world’s

environment -friendliness.
HUMAN RESOURCE

largest automotive chain stores in North America for supply

JK Fenner recognises people as the crucial source of

of automotive power and fluid transmissions products. This

its competitiveness and continues to focus on people

should lead to growth of exports in the coming years.

development. The Company firmly believes that talented and
engaged employees are the critical differentiators as they

During the year, your Company worked with a few global

provide the competitive advantage for sustaining and growing

automotive customers in Japan right from the design stage of

the business in an environment of global competition. Your

the product. This effort finally culminated into business in the

Company has been continuously focusing on the means to

last quarter of the year.

achieve growth targets through acquisition of external talent

OTHERS

people development initiatives. The Company fosters a culture

In line with Union Government’s ‘Make in India’ policy,

job development is part of the way JK Fenner works. These

J.K. Fenner has enhanced its efforts to support Defence

initiatives ensure a robust succession planning and minimise

organisations to reduce their import bills for components and

and by improving the capabilities of existing people through
of on-going coaching and feedback for all employees. On-the

the ill-effects of talent attrition.

spare parts. Your Company is working with a number of Indian
OEMs, who have won supply contracts from the Defence
Ministry.
In order to take advantage of modernisation of railways in
India, your Company has created a dedicated team for this
segment which is in advanced stage of developing various
products for many segments of railways.
In the fluid transfer business, your Company has been
successful in winning many contracts with automotive OEs and
Tier 1 customers. With this success this particular vertical is
poised for growth in the years to come.
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Emerging Leader Excellence in People Management Award

The Company has been bestowed inter alia, with the following
awards and accolades during the year under review:(a)

Certified by “Best Places To Work”.

(b)

Hyderabad unit bagged the following awards:(i)	National Safety Awards instituted by Ministry of
Labour & Employment, Government of India.
(ii)	Emerging Leader Excellence in People Management
(Sector-Auto) award from CII.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
The Scheme of Arrangement between Florence Investech
Limited (“Florence”), BMF Investments Limited, J.K. Fenner
(India) Limited (“JK Fenner”) and Bengal & Assam Company
Limited (“The Transferee Company”) and their respective
shareholders, approved by the Board of Directors is pending for
approval of the Equity Shareholders (other than the Transferee
Company) and/ Unsecured Creditors of the Company and
Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company, Florence, and
the National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata and Chennai. On
sanction of the Scheme and the Scheme becoming effective,
BMF Investments Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company will be amalgamated into and with Bengal &
Assam Company Limited (“The Transferee Company”), in
consideration of issue of shares by the Transferee Company to
the shareholders (other than the Transferee Company) of the
Company in terms of the Scheme.

An extract of the Annual Return, as on 31st March 2018, in the
prescribed form MGT-9, is attached as Annexure ‘A’ with this
Report and forms a part of it.
OF

LOANS,

with related parties were in the ordinary course of business
and on an arm’s length basis and were in compliance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Further, the Company did not enter into any contract or
arrangement or transaction with related parties that could be
considered material. In view of the above, disclosure in Form
AOC-2 is not applicable.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, ETC.
The details, as required under Section 134(3)(m) read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are annexed to this Report
as Annexure ‘B’ and forms a part of it.
DEPOSITS

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

PARTICULARS

National Safety award from Goverment of India

Pursuant to the approval of members by means of a special
resolution dated 25th September 2015, the Company has
continued to accept deposits from the public, in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules

GUARANTEES

AND

INVESTMENTS

thereunder.
The particulars with respect to the deposits covered under

The particulars of loans, guarantees, securities and investments

Chapter V of the said Act, for the financial year ended 31st

covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies

March 2018 are (a) accepted during the year: ` 13.78 Crore;

Act, 2013, are furnished in the financial statements.

(b) remained unclaimed as at the end of the year: `0.06 Crore;

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(c) defaulted in repayment of deposits or payment of interest
thereon at the beginning of the year and at the end of the year:

During the financial year ended 31st March 2018, all contracts

NIL and (d) details of deposits which are not in compliance

or arrangements or transactions entered into by the Company

with the requirements of Chapter V of the said Act: NIL.
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CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules thereunder, the Company is eligible to avail exemption
from presenting consolidated financial statements, since the
Company is in compliance of the conditions specified in the
said Section and Rules thereto.
Accordingly, your Company has availed the exemption from
preparation and presentation of its Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31st March 2018 being an
unlisted Company and its Holding Company consolidates the
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2018 in
compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards.
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the
Company has placed the separate audited accounts of its

Sponsoring of Sewing machines

to this Report as Annexure ‘C’. The Secretarial Audit Report does
not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

subsidiaries on the website of the Company.

(c) Cost Auditor and Cost Audit Report

During the financial year under review, no company has

The Cost Audit for the financial year ended 31st March 2017 was

become or ceased to be Company’s subsidiary or joint venture.

conducted by M/s. M.Indumathi & Associates, Cost Accountants,

AUDITORS
(a) Statutory Auditors and their Report
M/s. Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants, have been appointed

Chennai and as required, the Cost Audit Report was duly filed with
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India. The audit of the
cost accounts of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st
March 2018 is also being conducted by the said firm.

as Statutory Auditors of the Company by the members at the 24th
Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 30th August 2017 for a

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

term of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion of the 24th

Your Company aims to contribute to sustainable growth

AGM until the conclusion of the 29th AGM, subject to ratification of
the appointment by the members at the respective Annual General
Meetings. However, pursuant to the Companies (Amendment) Act,

of society in the fields of health, education, hygiene, selfemployment & rural development.

2017, the requirement of ratification of appointment of the Auditors

During the year, your Company has undertaken a total of 35

on yearly basis has been dispensed with. The observations of the

batches of adult literacy programme in Madurai and out of

Auditors in their report on Accounts and the Financial Statements,

which 12 batches were arranged exclusively for women.

read with the relevant notes are self - explanatory.
(b) Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report
Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act
2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the Board of Directors appointed
M/s. R.Sridharan & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in

Your Company has been involved in supporting vocational
skills for rural women through self-help groups. During the
year 2017-18, your Company distributed sewing machines
and organised training for rural women at Velimala village
and Balanagar at Hyderabad, in addition to organizing eye
screening camps in Tamilnadu and Telangana.

practice as Secretarial Auditors to carry out the Secretarial Audit of

Your Company in its mission towards “Swachh Bharat” and

the Company for the financial year 2017-18. The Report, given by

promoting hygiene and health care, constructed about 269

them for the said financial year in the prescribed format, is annexed

Individual Household toilets and toilets for children in girl schools
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in rural areas during the year. The Company also commenced

The Company also has a robust Management Information

Sanitary napkin manufacturing project at Maduramangalam

System (MIS) which is the backbone for ensuring that its assets

village in Tamilnadu by distributing two sanitary napkin

and interests are safeguarded.

manufacturing machines with a capacity to produce 5 lakh pads
a year.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

One of the major initiatives taken by your Company was

During the financial year under review, there were no

adoption of a village in Madurai, Tamilnadu as a green village

significant and material orders passed by the regulators or

project with the aim to make the village self-sustained in all

courts or tribunals that could impact the going concern status

fronts viz., water, sanitation, sustainable agriculture, energy

of the Company and its future operations.

efficiency etc.,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

The annual report on the CSR activities undertaken by your
Company during the financial year under review, in the
prescribed format is annexed to this Report as Annexure ‘D’.
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company has in place adequate budgetary control system

There have been no material changes and commitments
affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company
and the date of this report.
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

and internal financial controls with reference to financial

Shri Harsh Pati Singhania retires by rotation and, being eligible,

statements. No reportable material weaknesses were observed

offers himself for re-appointment at the ensuing AGM.

in the system during the previous fiscal. Further, the Company
has in place adequate internal financial control systems
and procedures which ensure accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records and the same are adequate for
safeguarding of its assets and for prevention and detection

Declarations have been received from all the Independent
Directors of the Company that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act 2013.

of frauds and errors, commensurate with the size and nature

Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Companies

of operation of the Company. The existing internal control

Act, 2013, Shri Vikrampati Singhania, Managing Director,
Shri Nagaraju Srirama, President&Director, Shri V.Rengaswamy,
Vice President (Finance & Accounts) and Shri R.Vijayaraghavan,
General Manager (Legal, Internal Audit) & Company Secretary
have been appointed as Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company during the year under review.
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
Five Board Meetings were held during the twelve months
period from 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018 i.e., on 12th
May 2017, 12th June 2017, 9th August 2017, 25th October
2017 and 7th February 2018.

RO plants

AUDIT COMMITTEE

systems and procedures are also adequate for orderly and

The Audit Committee of Directors comprises of Shri Bakul

efficient conduct of business of your Company.

Jain, Chairman of the Committee, Shri Rahul C Kirloskar and
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During the year, no complaint has been filed with ICC with
allegation of Sexual Harassment.
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated
a Nomination and Remuneration Policy pursuant to the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Policy is attached to this Report as Annexure ‘E’ and forms a
part of it.
Water for irrigation
Shri Surendra Malhotra, all being Independent Directors. The
composition and the ‘Terms of Reference’ of the Committee
are in conformity with the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
VIGIL MECHANISM

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
The Board of Directors has made formal annual evaluation of
its own performance and that of its committees and individual
Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.
Performance of the Board was evaluated after seeking inputs
from the Directors on the basis of the criteria such as adequacy

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and

of its composition and structure, effectiveness of board

the Rules thereto, your Company has established a vigil

processes, information and functioning, etc.

mechanism for the directors and employees to report their
genuine concerns or grievances relating to actual or suspected
fraud, unethical behaviour, violation of the Company’s Code
of Conduct or Ethics policy, and any other event which would
adversely affect the interests of the business of the Company.
Whistle Blowers may send their concerns/complaints to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee in a sealed envelope marked

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board
after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis
of criteria such as composition of committees, terms of reference
of committees, effectiveness of the committee meetings,
participation of the members of the committee in the meetings
etc.

confidential, for appropriate action.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The details of establishment of such mechanism have been

directors on the basis of criteria such as attendance and

disclosed on the website of the Company. It is affirmed that

effective participation and contributions at the meetings of the

no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

Board and its committees, exercise of his/her duties with due

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE
Your Company is sensitive to women employees at workplace.
As required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,
the Company has a formal policy to ensure safety of women
and prevention of sexual harassment and has set up Internal
Complaints Committee (ICC) at its work places to redress the
Complaints of women employees.
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also carried out evaluation of the performance of individual

& reasonable care, skill and diligence etc.
In a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the
Company, performance of the non-independent Directors,
performance of the Board as a whole and performance of
the Chairman and the Managing Director were evaluated,
taking into account the views of the Executive Directors of the
Company. The Chairman of the Meeting of the Independent
Directors apprised the Board about the evaluation carried by it
and that the Independent Directors were fully satisfied in this
regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
As required under Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act

and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

2013, your Directors state that:

Your Directors further state that applicable Secretarial

a)

in the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable

Standards issued under Section 118 of the Companies Act,

accounting standards have been followed along with

2013 have been complied with.

proper explanation relating to material departures, if any.
b)

the accounting policies have been selected and applied

RISK MANAGEMENT

consistently and judgments and estimates made are

The Company has an elaborate risk management system

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair

to inform Board Members about risk assessment and

view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end
of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;
c)

proper and sufficient care has been taken for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the said Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)

the annual accounts have been prepared on a going
concern basis;

e)

the internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company have been laid down and that such internal

minimization procedures. A Risk Management Committee
headed by a Whole-time Director evaluates the efficacy of
the framework relating to risk identification and its mitigation.
Board Members are accordingly informed.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The Board places on record its appreciation of the valued
services and dedicated efforts of the employees of the
Company, as also the co-operation and support extended by
Company’s bankers, customers, shareholders, dealers, vendors,
various Government agencies and other stakeholders.

financial controls are adequate and were operating

On Behalf of the Board

effectively; and
f)

the proper systems to ensure compliance with the

Place: New Delhi			

provisions of all applicable laws have been devised

Date: 18th May 2018

Dr. Raghupati Singhania
Chairman

Board of Directors visit at Madurai Plant during AGM
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Annexure-A to the Directors’ Report
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2018
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:                       
1

CIN

2

Registration Date

:

U24231TN1992PLC062306

3

Name of the Company

:

J.K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED

4

Address of the Registered office and
contact details

:

3, Madurai-Melakkal Road, Madurai 625 016
email: vijayaraghavan@jkfenner.com
website: www.jkfennerindia.com
Tel No. 0452-4283826
Fax No. 0452-4283831

5

Category/Sub-Category of the Company

:

Public Company

09.04.1992

6

Whether listed company

7

Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any.

Yes / No

:

No

:

M/s. Alankit Assignments Limited.
Alankit House, 4E/2, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi - 110055.
Tel No. 11-42541234, 23541234, Fax No. 011-23552001
email: info@alankit.com; website: www.alankit.com

II.     PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:Sl.
No.

Name and Description of main products/services

NIC Code of the Product/
service

% to total turnover of the company

4010

56.80%

1

Power Transmission Products

2

Oilseals, Moulded Rubber Products and Rubber
Compounds, Rubber Hoses

4016; 4005; 4004; 4009

26.30%

3

Engineering Products & Services

8483; 8482; 8479; 8708

15.50%

III.  

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S.No.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

CIN/GLN

HOLDING/
SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

% of shares
held

Applicable
Section

1

BENGAL & ASSAM COMPANY LIMITED
7, Council House Street, Kolkata 700 001

L67120WB1947PLC221402

HOLDING
COMPANY

88.17

2(46)

2

SOUTHERN SPINNERS AND PROCESSORS LIMITED
3, Madurai-Melakkal Road, Madurai 625 016

U17111TN2005PLC056558

SUBSIDIARY
COMPANY

100.00

2(87)

3

MODERN COTTON YARN SPINNERS LIMITED
3, Madurai-Melakkal Road, Madurai 625 016

U17111TN2005PLC057274

SUBSIDIARY
COMPANY

100.00

2(87)

4

BMF INVESTMENTS LIMITED
7, Council House Street, Kolkata 700 001

U67120WB2005PLC221814

SUBSIDIARY
COMPANY

100.00

2(87)

5

ACORN ENGINEERING LTD
Delite Theatre Building, 2nd Floor, Asaf Ali Road,
New Delhi 110 002

U74210DL1978PLC009175

SUBSIDIARY
COMPANY

100.00

2(87)

6

DIVYASHREE COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
Patriot House, 3 Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg,
New Delhi 110 002

U10100DL2008PTC178373

SUBSIDIARY
COMPANY

61.00

2(87)

7

DWARKESH ENERGY LIMITED
Gulab Bhawan, 3rd Floor, 6A, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg,
New Delhi 110 002

U31200DL2005PLC278945

ASSOCIATE
COMPANY

33.16

2(6)

8

PSV ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Patriot House, 4th Floor, 3 Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg,
New Delhi 110 002

U40300DL2013PTC258991

ASSOCIATE
COMPANY

26.00

2(6)
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Shareholding
No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year (as on 1st April 2017)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
(as on 31st March 2018)

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

%
Change
during
the year

a. Individual/HUF

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

b. Central Govt.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

c. State Govt (s)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

d. Bodies Corp.

2189314

-

2189314

88.17

2189314

-

2189314

88.17

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Category of Shareholders
A. Promoters
(1) Indian

e. Banks / FI
f. Any Other….

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2189314

-

2189314

88.17

2189314

-

2189314

88.17

-

a) NRIs - Individuals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

b) Other – Individuals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

c) Bodies Corp.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

d) Banks / FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-total (A) (1):(2) Foreign

e) Any Other….

-

-

-

-

Sub-total (A) (2):-

-

-

-

-

-

2189314

88.17

2189314

-

2189314

88.17

-

Total shareholding of
2189314
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-total (B)(1) :-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

57401

57401

2.31

-

57401

57401

2.31

-

-

154200

154200

6.21

-

154200

154200

6.21

-

2666

59335

62001

2.50

1777

59106

60883

2.45

-0.05

-

20150

20150

0.81

889

20379

21268

0.86

0.05

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2666

291086

293752

11.83

2666

291086

293752

11.83

-

2666

291086

293752

11.83

2666

291086

293752

11.83

-

2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto ` 1 lakh
ii) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of ` 1 lakh
c) Others
(specify)
Sub-total (B)(2):Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Grand Total (A+B+C)

2191980

291086

2483066

100.00

2191980

291086

2483066

100.00

-
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sl No.

Shareholder’s
Name

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year (as on 1st April 2017)

No. of
Shares

1

Shareholding at the end of the year
(as on 31st March 2018)

% of total
Shares of the
company

%of Shares
Pledged /
encumbered to
total shares

No. of Shares

% of total
Shares of the
company

%of Shares
Pledged /
encumbered
to total
shares

% change in
shareholding
during the
year

Bengal & Assam
Company Limited

2189314

88.17

-

2189314

88.17

-

-

Total

2189314

88.17

-

2189314

88.17

-

-

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)
Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
Sl. No.
No. of shares
1

At the beginning of the year

2

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease
(e.g. allotment/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

3

At the end of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

There is no change in the Promoter’s Shareholding
during the FY 2017-18.

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Shareholding at the beginning of
the year (as on 01.04.2017)
Sl. No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders
No. of shares

1

Henry F. Cockill & Sons Ltd.

2

% of total
shares of the
company

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

154200

6.21

154200

6.21

Accurate Finman Services Limited

23796

0.96

23796

0.96

3

Hari Shankar Singhania Holdings Private Limited

20150

0.81

20150

0.81

4

KOR Investments Ltd.

13333

0.54

13333

0.54

5

Shri Bharat Hari Singhania

6721

0.27

8075

0.33

6

Smt.Vinita Singhania

6721

0.27

7743

0.31

7

Shri Anshuman Singhania

6715

0.27

6715

0.27

8

Shri Shrivats Singhania

6715

0.27

6715

0.27

9

Mr.Sunil K. Mittal (Jt.) Mrs.Kadambari S. Mittal

4033

0.16

4033

0.16

10

Mrs.Kadambari S. Mittal (Jt.) Mr.Sunil K. Mittal

3133

0.13

3133

0.13
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. No.

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year
(as on 01.04.2017)

For Each of the Directors and KMP

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

V.

1

Dr.Raghupati Singhania

2

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

20150

0.81

21268

0.86

Shri Harsh Pati Singhania

6715

0.27

6715

0.27

3

Shri Vikrampati Singhania

6715

0.27

6715

0.27

4

Shri Nagaraju Srirama

1

0

1

INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

0

(` in Lacs)

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

14,631.60

783.20

4,112.32

-

-

-

-

0.04

2.33

-

2.37

14,631.64

785.53

4,112.32

19,529.49

- Addition

1,425.56

290.99

1,378.60

3,095.15

- Reduction

3,142.86

40.15

558.97

3,741.98

(1,717.30)

250.84

819.63

(646.83)

12,914.30

1,034.04

4,931.95

18,880.29

-

-

-

-

0.87

1.97

-

2.84

12,915.17

1,036.01

4,931.95

18,883.13

Total
Indebtedness

Deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)

19,527.12

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Net Change (Principal Amount only)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
VI.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sl.
No.

Name of MD/WTD/Manager
Particulars of Remuneration

Total
amount

Managing Director
Shri Vikrampati Singhania

Whole-time Director
Shri Nagaraju Srirama

(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

466.36

187.31

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

41.97

0.72

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

2

Commission- as % of profit and Others

200.00

-

200.00

3

Others (mainly contribution to
Provident and Superannuation Funds)

1

Gross salary

Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

45.31

8.47

753.64

196.50

653.67

42.69

53.78
950.14

` 955.13 lacs (being 10% of the net profits of the Company calculated as per
Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013
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B. Remuneration to other directors:

(` in Lacs)
Name of Directors

Particulars of Remuneration

Shri Surendra
Malhotra

Shri Rahul
Chandrakant
Kirloskar

Shri Bakul Jain

Total
Amount

1. Independent Directors
·   Fee for attending board
meetings

1.50

1.20

1.20

3.90

·   Fee for attending Committee
meetings

2.40

0.80

1.20

4.40

·  Commission

0.80

0.80

0.80

2.40

Total (1)

4.70

2.80

3.20

10.70

2. O
 ther Non-Executive
Directors

Dr.Raghupati
Singhania

·   Fee for attending board
meetings

Shri H.V. Lodha

Shri Harsh Pati
Singhania

0.90

1.20

1.50

·   Fee for attending
Committee meetings

Smt. Mamta
Singhania

Total
Amount
0.60

4.20

0.70

-

0.10

-

0.80

·  Commission

60.00

0.80

30.00

0.80

91.60

Total (2)

62.20

1.70

31.30

1.40

96.60

Total (B)=(1+2)

107.30

Total Managerial Remuneration [(A)+(B)]
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

1057.44

` 1050.65 lacs (being 11% of the net profits of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of
the Companies Act, 2013)

* T
 otal Remuneration paid to Managing Director, Whole-time Director and other Directors (being the total A & B), includes
sitting fees of ` 13.30 lacs.

C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel (KMP) other than MD/ MANAGER/ WTD
Key Managerial Personnel

Sl.
no.
1

Particulars of Remuneration

Shri V Rengaswamy,
CFO

Shri. R.Vijayaraghavan,
Company Secretary

Total

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

2

(` in Lacs)

43.42

27.15

70.57

0.19

0.19

0.38

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

Stock Option

-

-

-

3

Sweat Equity

-

-

-

4

Commission

-

-

-

- as % of profit

-

-

-

others, specify…

-

-

-

5

Others, (mainly contribution to PF& Superannuation Fund)
Total

2.74

2.19

4.93

46.35

29.53

75.88

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
There were no penalties, punishment or compounding of offences during the year ended 31st March 2018.
On Behalf of the Board
Place : New Delhi
Date : 18th May 2018
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Dr.Raghupati Singhania
Chairman

Annexure B to the Directors’ Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(i)	The Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;
The company has worked on many initiatives to reduce power and fuel consumption like
(a) Modification of hydraulic circuits
(b) Upgradation of boilers
(c) Modification of chiller units.
with the above steps company could reduce the energy consumption to a great extent.
(ii)	the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy;
	Our focus has been greatly on renewable energy. A number of initiatives taken in this regard have started yielding results and would
prove even better in coming years.
	The Company generated about 1,42,84,061 units of power from its wind plants located at Kanyakumarai District, Tamilnadu.
Your Company also generated about 16,82,244 units of power through its solar plants located at Kanyakumarai District and at
Pashamailaram in Telangana. Total power generated using alternate energy during the year is 1,59,66,305 Units.
(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipments:
	As continued commitment to renewable energy, your Company has installed a 3 MW solar project during the year 2017-18 at
Gajjawada village in Telangana.
(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
(i)	The efforts made towards technology absorption:
	Developed new generation tensioners for various end use and is in the process of obtaining approvals with certain key customers.
Our application for patenting these tensioners is accepted by the Controller of Patents, The Patent Office, Chennai.
(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:
	Developed certain products for defence application. These products are import substitution helping not only to reduce foreign
expenditure, but could reduce the cost of the products in a significant way.
(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) -Nil
(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research & Development:
i)

Areas of R&D Activities

		The Company has been continuously upgrading its R&D facilities and capabilities to be at the forefront of technology. Many
innovative products in Transmission Belts, Oil Seals, Hoses and Engineering Products have been successfully developed to fulfil
the needs of the customers in India and abroad.
		The R&D activities of the Company have been further enhanced by setting up modern testing facilities and by strengthening
design capabilities. Extensive exposure to best practices and innovative products and application are part of continuous learning
for the team.
ii)

Research & Development Expenses

		The capital expenditure incurred on R&D during the year was ` 0.32 Crore and recurring expenditure amounted to ` 10.44
Crores, with the total expenditure of ` 10.76 Crores, 1.65% of the turnover.

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO		
` in Crore
			
2017-18
2016-17
Earnings in Foreign Exchange
71.29
80.19
Foreign Exchange Outgo
73.30
67.57
			
Place: New Delhi
Date: 18th May 2018

On Behalf of the Board
Dr. Raghupati Singhania
Chairman
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Annexure C to the Directors’ Report
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
The Members,
J.K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: U24231TN1992PLC062306
3, MADURAI-MELAKKAL ROAD, MADURAI – 625016
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by J.K. Fenner (India) Limited (CIN: U24231TN1992PLC062306) (hereinafter called “the Company”)
having its Registered Office at 3, Madurai-Melakkal Road, Madurai – 625 016. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit. We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018 according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder and the Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent applicable);
(ii)	Since the Company is an unlisted Public Company and hence the question of complying with the provisions of the Securities
Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder does not arise;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv)	During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999
(FEMA) and the rules and regulations made there under. There is no Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings during the year under review;
(v)	Since the Company is an unlisted Public Company, the provisions of the following Regulations (a to i) and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) does not arise:a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
c)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d)	
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999;
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
f)	
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
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g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; and
i)

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(vi)	As per the information furnished to us by the Company no specific laws/acts are applicable to the company. Based on the
information furnished to us and explanation provided to us, we have examined the adequacy of systems and processes in
place to monitor and ensure compliance with labour laws, Economic laws, etc.
	With respect to Fiscal laws, based on the information and explanation provided to us by the management and officers of the
Company, we report that adequate systems are in place to monitor and ensure compliance of fiscal laws.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
	Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
	During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above.
We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. There is no change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Meetings which are convened at shorter notice and
agenda / notes on agenda which are circulated less than the specified period, the necessary compliances under the Companies
Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards on Board Meeting are complied with.
Based on the verification of the records and minutes, the decisions were carried out with the consent of majority of the Board of
Directors / Committee Members and there were no dissenting members views recorded in the minutes.
We further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Company and on basis of the Compliance
certificate(s) issued by the Company Secretary and taken on record by the Board of Directors at their meeting(s), we are of the
opinion that the management has adequate systems and processes commensurate with its size and operations, to monitor and
ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
We further report that there were no specific events having major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of above
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and standards during the period under review.
For R.SRIDHARAN & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES
CS R.SRIDHARAN
PLACE : CHENNAI
DATE : 18th May, 2018

CP No. 3239
FCS No. 4775
UIN : S2003TN063400

Note: This Report is to be read with letter of even date by Secretarial Auditor, which is annexed as Annexure A and Forms an
integral part of this Report.
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‘Annexure A’
The Members,
J.K. Fenner (India) Limited
3, MADURAI-MELAKKAL ROAD
MADURAI – 625016
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1)	Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
2)	We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
3)	We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Account of the company.
4)	Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.
5)	The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.
6)	The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For R.SRIDHARAN & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES
PLACE : CHENNAI
DATE : 18th May, 2018

CS R.SRIDHARAN
CP No. 3239
FCS No. 4775

Annexure D to the Directors’ Report
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN BY THE COMPANY DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH 2018
1. 		Brief outline of Company’s CSR Policy including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and
a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs.
	The Company has been one of the foremost proponents of inclusive growth and since inception, has been continuing to
undertake projects for overall development and welfare of the society in the areas pertaining to promoting preventive
healthcare, education, livelihood intervention, rural development, environment sustainability and conservation of natural
resources, etc.
	
Now, as required under the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has framed a CSR
Policy. The details of the CSR Policy have been posted on the website of the Company and the web-link for the same is
www.jkfennerindia.com/csrpolicy.aspx.
	As mentioned above, various projects / programs undertaken by the Company as per the CSR Policy are in the areas of health
care including sanitation, education including adult literacy and single teacher schools, etc.
2.

The composition of the CSR Committee:
Shri Vikrampati Singhania, Managing Director (Chairman of the Committee); Non-Independent
Shri Surendra Malhotra (Independent Director); and
Shri Nagaraju Srirama (President & Director); Non-Independent

3.

Average Net Profit of the company for last three financial years:  ` 7099.11 lacs

4.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item No. 3 above): ` 141.98 lacs
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5.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

Sl.
No

a.

Total amount to be spent during the financial year:  ` 142 lacs.

b.

Amount unspent : Nil

c.

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

CSR project or
activity identified

(2)

(1)
1

Sanitation

2

Health Care

3

Eye Camp

4

Adult Literacy,
Single Teacher
School,
Vocational Skills
(Self Help Groups)

5

Single Teacher
School

6

Revamping water
resources

7

Tree plantation

Sector in which the
project is covered
(Clause no. of
Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013
as amended)

(3)
Cl.(i)- Preventive
health care and
promotion of
sanitation and
making available
safe drinking
water.

Cl.(ii)- Promoting
education

Projects or programs
(1) Local area or other
(2) Specify the State
and district where
projects or programs
was undertaken

(4)

Amount outlay
(budget) project or
program-wise
(` in lacs)

(5)

55.00

8

Promoting Sports

Cl.(vii)-training
to promote rural
sports, nationally
recognized sports,
Paralympic sport
and Olympic
sports

9

Green Village
Project

Cl.(x)-Rural
Development Projects

Total

Madurai (Tamil Nadu)
& Hyderabad
(Telangana)

(6)

(7)

(8)

57.23

Direct/NGO

88.43

Direct/NGO
Shankar Netralaya Hospital

1.92

30.00

Chennai (Tamil Nadu)

Cl.(iv)- Ensuring
environmental
sustainability,
ecological balance

Amount spent: Directly/
through implementing agency

(` in lacs)

29.28

Chennai (Tamil Nadu)

Hyderabad (Telangana)
& Madurai
(Tamil Nadu)

Cumulative expenditure
up to the reporting
period

(` in lacs)*

Madurai (Tamil Nadu)
& Hyderabad
(Telangana)
Hyderabad
(Telangana), Madurai
(Tamil Nadu) & New Delhi

Amount spent on the
projects or programs
Sub-heads:
(1)Direct expenditure on
projects or programs
(2)Overheads:

6.69

6.69

Direct

15.00

15.00

Swami Vivekananda Rural
Development Society

1.36

Madurai (Tamil Nadu)

Direct

1.44

12.00

0.08

Direct

Madurai (Tamil Nadu)

5.00

1.89

1.89

Direct

Madurai (Tamil Nadu)

40.00

30.16

30.16

Direct

142.00

143.61

143.61

* Amount indicated in this column is only direct expenditure on projects or programmes. It does not include overheads.

6.

 he CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives
T
and Policy of the Company.

Place : New Delhi				
Date: 18 May 2018
th

(Nagaraju Srirama)
President & Director			

(Vikrampati Singhania)
Chairman, CSR Committee
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Annexure E to the Directors’ Report
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

(iii)	The Board will review the performance of a Director as

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the Company has put in place the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees of the Company including
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,

per the structure of performance evaluation adopted
by the Board of Directors including Executive Directors.

(iv)	The Committee will review from time to time Board
diversity

to

bring

in

professional

performance

different

areas

of

operations,

transparency,

independence of a Director as well as a policy on Board

in

diversity. The Policy provides as follows:

corporate governance, financial management, risk
assessment & mitigation strategy and human resource

(i)	
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of

management in the Company. The Company will

Directors (the Committee) shall take into consideration

keep succession planning and board diversity in mind

the following criteria for recommending to the Board

while recommending any new name of Director for

for appointment as a Director of the Company:

appointment to the Board.

(a)

Qualifications & experience;

(b) 	Positive attributes like-respect for Company’s core

(v)	The eligibility criteria for appointment of Key Managerial

values, professional integrity, strategic capability

Personnel (KMPs) and other senior management

with business vision etc.;

personnel shall vary for different positions depending

(c) 	In case the proposed appointee is an Independent

upon the job description of the relevant position. In

for

particular, the position of KMPs shall be filled by senior

appointment as Independent Director as per the

personnel having relevant qualifications and experience.

applicable laws & regulations;

The Compensation structure for KMPs and other senior

Director,

he

should

fulfil

the

criteria

(d) 	The incumbent should not be disqualified

management personnel shall be as per Company’s

for appointment as Director pursuant to the

remuneration structure taking into account factors

provisions of the Act or other applicable laws &

such as level of experience, qualification and suitability

regulations.

which shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate them. The remuneration would be

(ii)	
The Committee will recommend to the Board

linked to appropriate performance benchmarks. The

appropriate compensation to the Executive Directors

remuneration may consist of fixed and incentive pay

subject to the provisions of the Act, and other applicable

reflecting short and long-term performance objectives

laws & regulations. The Committee shall periodically
review the compensation of such Directors in relation
to other comparable companies and other factors, the

appropriate to the working of the Company and its
goals.

Committee deems appropriate. Proposed changes,
On Behalf of the Board

if any, in the compensation of such Directors shall be
reviewed by the Committee subject to approval of the

Place : New Delhi

Board.

Date : 18th May 2018
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Dr.Raghupati Singhania
Chairman

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF J.K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements
of J.K. FENNER (INDIA) LIMITED (“the Company”), which
comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the statement of Cash flows and the statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial
statements”).
Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial
Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matter stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind
AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Ind AS
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from

Opinion

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS
financial statements based on our audit.
In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder
and the Order issued under Section 143(11) of the Act.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31 st March, 2018, and its profit, total comprehensive income,
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the period ended
on that date.

1.	As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our
audit we report, to the extent applicable that:
a)	We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
b)	In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT
c)	The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account;

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on other

d)	In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act;

Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143

e)	
On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors as on 31st March, 2018 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act;

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial

f)	With respect to the adequacy of internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”.

Management’s

g)	
With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

and maintaining internal financial controls based on the

		

i.	The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements — Refer Note 34 to the Ind AS
financial statements;
ii.	
The Company has made provision, as required
under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts; and

		

iii.	Generally there has been no delay in transferring
amount required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016
(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B”, a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of
the Order.

Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even
date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

reporting of J.K. Fenner (India) Limited (“the Company”) as at
31st March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.
Responsibility

for

Internal

Financial

Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with

Place: New Delhi
Date: 18.05.2018
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For LODHA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 301051E
N.K. LODHA
Partner
Membership No. 085155

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of

internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance

authorizations of management and directors of the company;

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and

and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or

about whether adequate internal financial controls over

disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such

effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system

the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material

over financial reporting.

respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over

Reporting

financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting

criteria established by the Company considering the essential

is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the

For LODHA & CO.,

assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that

Chartered Accountants

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

Firm Registration No. 301051 E

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

N.K. LODHA

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures

Place: New Delhi

Partner

of the company are being made only in accordance with

Date: 18.05.2018

Membership No. 085155
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on other Legal and

upon audit procedures performed, we are of the opinion

Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

that in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and

(i)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records

showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

securities, the Company has complied with the provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Act.
(v)	
In our opinion and according to the information and

	(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the
management according to the phased program designed
to cover all the items over a period of three years, which
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program, the fixed assets have been physically
verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,
discrepancies have duly been adjusted in the financials.
	(c) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
are held in the name of the Company.

explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of Section 73 to76 of the Act or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there
under with regard to deposits accepted from the public
read with Para 1(g)(iii) of Auditor’s Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements. We have been informed
that no order has been passed by the Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank
of India or any Court or other Tribunal in this regard.
(vi)	
We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of the
cost records under section 148(1) of the Act in respect of

(ii)	The inventories of the Company (except stock lying with
the third parties and in transit, for which confirmations
have been received/ material received) have been
physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals and the procedures of physical verification of
inventory followed by the management are reasonable
in relation to the size of the Company and nature of its
business. The discrepancies noticed on such physical
verification of inventory as compared to book records
were not material.

the company’s products to which the said rules are made
applicable and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
prescribed records have been made and maintained. We
have, however, not made a detailed examination of the
said records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.
(vii)	(a) According to the records of the company, the company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, custom duty, excise

(iii)	According to the records and information and explanation
made available to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, LLP,
and other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (`the Act’).

duty, value added tax, entry tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, with the appropriate authorities to the
extent applicable. Further, there were no undisputed
amounts outstanding at the year-end for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable

Therefore, the provisions of clause (iii), (iii) (a), (iii) (b) and

except the VAT of ` 3.95 lacs and CST of ` 0.53 lacs, as

(iii) (c) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to

explained by the management the amount were remitted

the company.

to the department but not yet presented for bank clearing,
and entry tax payable under The West Bengal Tax on Entry

(iv)	
According

to

the

information,

explanations

and

representations provided by the management and based
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of Goods into Local Areas Act, 2012, amounting of ` 69.00
Lacs.

	
(b) According to the records and information &
explanations given to us, certain dues in respect of
income tax, sales tax, service tax and excise duty that
have not been deposited with the appropriate authority
on account of dispute and the forum where the dispute is
pending are given below:
Name of the
Statute

Central Excise
Act, 1944

Period to
Nature Amount
which the
of Dues (`in Lacs)
amount relates
Excise
Duty

Forum where the
dispute is pending

1996-97, 199899 to 2001-02
Commissioner
58.88 April to Decem- Appeals, Meerut, Uttar
ber 2002- 2003Pradesh
04 & 2005-06

Central Excise
Act, 1944

Excise
Duty

20.37

Finance Act,
1994

Service
Tax

8.51

Finance Act,
1994

Service
Tax

0.16

April ‘16 to
March ‘17

The Commissioner of
CGST & Central Excise
(Appeals) Madurai

Central Sales
Tax Act and
Sales Tax
Sales Tax Act of
various States

379.99

1991-92 to
2004- 05

Commercial Tax
Officer, Tamil Nadu

Central Sales
Tax Act and
Sales Tax
Sales Tax Act of
various States

345.71

1996-97 to
2001- 2002

Tamil Nadu Sales Tax
Appellate Tribunal

Central Sales
Tax Act and
Sales Tax
Sales Tax Act of
various States

126.98

1991-92 to
2004- 05

Sales Tax Committee,
(Tribunal), Moradabad,
U.P.

Rajasthan Value
Added Tax
Sales Tax
2003

487.09

2012-13 &
2013- 14

Rajasthan Tax Board
Ajmer

(viii)

2010-11 to
2015- 16

Appeal to be filed to
CESTAT, Chennai

The Commissioner of
July’15 to March
CGST & Central Excise
‘16
(Appeals) Madurai

In our opinion, on the basis of audit procedures and
according to the information and explanation given
to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans and borrowings to financial institutions,
banks. The company has not taken any loans from
Governments or debenture holders.

(ix)	According to the information and explanations given
by the management, the Company has not raised any
monies by way of initial public offer or further public
offer during the financial year, and the term loans
raised by the Company have been applied for the
purpose for which they were obtained, where such end
use has been stipulated by the lender(s).

(x)

 ased on the audit procedures performed and on the
B
basis of information and explanations provided by the
management, no fraud by the Company and no fraud
on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(xi)	On the basis of records and information and explanations
made available and based on our examinations of
the records of the company, the company has paid /
provided managerial remuneration, in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated under Section 197
read with schedule V of the Act. (Refer Note no. 48(B)).
(xii)	The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual
benefit fund / Society, therefore, the provisions of
clause 4(xii) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company, hence we are not offering any comment.
(xiii)	As per the information and explanations and records
made available by the management of the company
and audit procedures performed, for the related parties
transactions entered during the year, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 177 and 188
of the Act where applicable. As explained and as per
the records / details, the related party transactions have
been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.
(xiv)	
The Company has made the preferential allotment
of preference shares during the year under review, in
compliance with the requirements of Section 42 of
the Act. The amounts raised have been used for the
purpose for which funds were raised.
(xv)	On the basis of records made available to us and
according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.
(xvi)	The Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934,
as the provisions of the section is not applicable to the
company.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 18.05.2018

For LODHA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 301051E
N.K. LODHA
Partner
M. No. 085155
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J.K. Fenner (India) Ltd.
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2018
Note
No.

As at
31.03.2018

As at
31.03.2017

` in Lacs
As at
01.04.2016

ASSETS
(1)

(2)

Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital Work-In-Progress
(c) Investment Property
(d) Other Intangible Assets
(e) Intangible Assets under Development
(f) Financial Assets
i) Investments
ii) Loans
iii) Other financial assets
(g) Other Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
i) Trade receivables
ii) Cash and cash equivalents
iii) Other bank balances
iv) Other financial assets
(c) Current tax assets (net)
(d) Other Current Assets

2

28,975.87
878.53
10.64
119.69
6.20

28,648.48
574.07
10.76
160.33
4.08

29,603.18
277.32
10.88
182.22
2.86

5
6
7
8

19,839.54
22,000.00
4,252.24
568.90
76,651.61

12,759.27
22,000.00
3,931.71
583.17
68,671.87

34,740.32
1,463.46
886.97
67,167.21

9

6,834.07

5,257.81

4,497.36

12,227.98
139.65
602.42
93.71
3,984.81
3,315.80
27,198.44
103,850.05

10,666.48
147.92
282.16
280.54
2,947.22
3,147.76
22,729.89
91,401.76

11,184.49
116.47
345.50
185.27
2,050.51
2,698.76
21,078.36
88,245.57

SOCE -I
SOCE -II

248.31
54,151.43
54,399.74

248.31
49,078.23
49,326.54

248.31
41,563.96
41,812.27

16
17
18
19
20

16,594.22
6,508.78
276.59
1,848.67
606.80
25,835.06

11,193.53
8,120.09
203.97
1,889.09
561.16
21,967.84

11,305.59
8,910.35
194.68
2,140.35
312.78
22,863.75

21
22
23
24
25

5,507.69
8,219.19
8,706.90
145.34
1,036.13
23,615.25
103,850.05

5,487.30
6,753.98
6,918.06
114.69
833.35
20,107.38
91,401.76

7,138.44
6,705.35
8,857.04
88.01
780.71
23,569.55
88,245.57

3
4

10
11
12
13
14
15

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity

Liabilities
(1) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings
ii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities
(2)

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings
ii) Trade payables
iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Other Current Liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Company overview, Basis of preparation and
Significant Accounting Policies

1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA
Chairman
H.V. LODHA
For LODHA & CO., 		
HARSH PATI SINGHANIA
Chartered Accountants		
BAKUL JAIN
VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
SURENDRA MALHOTRA
N.K. LODHA
Managing Director
NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Partner 		
Directors
			
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN
V. RENGASWAMY
Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer
New Delhi, the 18th May 2018		
New Delhi, the 18th May 2018

As per our report of even date
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
` in Lacs

Note
No.
I

2017-18

Income
Revenue from Operations

26

64,769.34

Other Income

27

4,120.49

3,466.42

68,889.83

67,847.56

26,307.99

21,955.62

Total Income
II

2016-17

64,381.14

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Changes in inventory of finished goods, stock in trade and
work-in-progress

28

Purchase of stock in trade
Excise duty

(1,669.04)

(660.03)

3,141.79

3,585.91

1,456.55

6,087.30

Employee benefits expense

29

9,715.59

9,032.40

Finance costs

30

2,627.90

2,839.52

Depreciation and amortisation expense

31

3,741.44

3,666.41

Other expenses

32

14,804.33

13,128.48

60,126.55

59,635.61

8,763.28

8,211.95

2,969.30

2,424.70

Total expenses
III

Profit before tax

IV

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

V

Profit for the year

VI

Other Comprehensive Income

(2.16)

(227.22)

5,796.14

6,014.47

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to Statement
of Profit and loss :
Fair value changes in equity shares
Remeasurement losses on defined benefit plans
Tax relating to Items that will not be Reclassified to Statement
of Profit and loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income
VII

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

694.19

2,591.22

(110.54)

(69.47)

38.26

24.04

621.91

2,545.79

6,418.05

8,560.26

VIII Earnings per equity share of `10 each
Basic / Diluted

43

(`)

233.42

(`)

242.22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA
Chairman
H.V. LODHA
For LODHA & CO., 		
HARSH PATI SINGHANIA
Chartered Accountants		
BAKUL JAIN
VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
SURENDRA MALHOTRA
N.K. LODHA
Managing Director
NAGARAJU SRIRAMA
Partner 		
Directors
			
R.VIJAYARAGHAVAN
V. RENGASWAMY
Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCE) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

I. Share capital

`

As at
31.03.2018

As at
31.03.2017

in Lacs

As at
01.04.2016

Authorised:
Equity Shares - 1,00,00,000 (Previous year 8,00,00,000) equity shares of
`10 each

1,000.00

8,000.00

8,000.00

Preference Shares - 80,00,000 (Previous year 10,00,000) preference
shares of ` 100 each

8,000.00

1,000.00

1,000.00

9,000.00

9,000.00

9,000.00

248.31

248.31

248.31

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up:
Equity Shares - 24,83,066 of `10 each
Balance at the beginning of the year
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at the end of the year

-

-

-

248.31

248.31

248.31

Aggregate number of equity shares allotted to shareholders as fully
paid up pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation on 7th November 2007
without payment being received in cash

Nos.

Nos.

Nos.

23,13,000

23,13,000

23,13,000

Above includes shares allotted to holding company

20,97,522

20,97,522

20,97,522

24,83,066

24,83,066

24,83,066

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding:
Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year
Changes during the year
Shares outstanding as at the end of the year

-

-

-

24,83,066

24,83,066

24,83,066

Details of each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Nos.

Nos.

Nos.

Bengal & Assam Company Limited - Holding Company

21,89,314

21,89,314

21,89,314

1,54,200

1,54,200

1,54,200

Henry F. Cockill & Sons Ltd, U.K.
Rights and preferences attached to the equity shares

i. The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having face value of `.10 each and each shareholder is entitled to one vote
per share.
ii. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.
iii. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.
The authorised share capital of the Company was reclassified as approved in the Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)
held on 18th April 2017.
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% preference shares in
the Company

Nos.

Nos.

Nos.

70,00,000

-

-

Preference shares of ` 100 each fully paid
JK Tyre & Industries Ltd.

i) Preference share holders have priority over equity shares in payment of Dividend and in repayment of capital.
ii) Preference share shall be redeemed at premium of 4%.
iii) Holder of preference share is entitled to one vote per share , in proportion to the amount paid on preference share held,
only on resolutions placed before the company which directly affects the rights attached to preference shares.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCE) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

II. Other Equity
Particulars
Restated balance as at 1 April 2016

`

Securities Capital
Capital
Premium Reserve Redemption
Reserve
*
Reserve

Retained Earnings
Surplus
in P/L
Statement

General
Reserve

Other
Comprehensive
Income

in Lacs
Total

140.00

258.11

77.10

3,279.74

37,741.93

67.08

41,563.96

Profit for the year

-

-

-

6,014.47

-

-

6,014.47

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of
Taxes)

-

-

-

-

-

2,545.79

2,545.79

Dividend paid

-

-

-

(869.07)

-

-

(869.07)

Dividend distribution tax paid on
dividend

-

-

-

(176.92)

-

-

(176.92)

Transfer to General reserve

-

-

-

(3,176.76)

3,176.76

-

-

140.00

258.11

77.10

5,071.46

40,918.69

2,612.87

49,078.23

Profit for the year

-

-

-

5,796.14

-

-

5,796.14

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of
Taxes)

-

-

-

-

-

621.91

621.91

Dividend paid

-

-

-

(1,117.38)

-

-

(1,117.38)

Dividend distribution tax paid on
dividend

-

-

-

(227.47)

-

-

(227.47)

Transfer to General reserve

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

140.00

258.11

77.10

9,522.75 40,918.69

3,234.78

54,151.43

As on March 31, 2017

As on 31st March, 2018

Revaluation reserve of ` 833. 62 lacs has been re-classified to retained earnings as per Ind AS.
* Capital reserve of ` 85.07 lacs has been re-classified to retained earnings as per Ind AS.

RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA
Chairman
H.V. LODHA
For LODHA & CO., 		
HARSH PATI SINGHANIA
Chartered Accountants		
BAKUL JAIN
VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
SURENDRA MALHOTRA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1

The Company overview
J.K. Fenner (India) Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. The registered office of
the company is situated at 3, Madurai-Melakkal Road, Kochadai, Madurai - 625016, Tamilnadu, India. The Company is a subsidiary
of Bengal & Assam Company Limited.
The Company develops, manufactures, trades, markets and distributes Belts, Oilseals, Engineering products and other auto
component products. The Company markets its products for sale to vehicle manufacturers for fitment as original equipments and
for sale in replacement markets worldwide. The Company has five manufacturing plants located in India at Madurai, Sriperumpudur,
Nilakkottai, Patancheru and Pashamailaram.

1.2

Basis of preparation of financial statements
(i) Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(ii) Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 101 “First Time Adoption of Ind AS”, as these are the
Company’s first Ind AS compliant financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018.
For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2017, the Company had prepared its financial statements in
accordance with Accounting Standards notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (‘Previous GAAP’).
The preparation of these financial statements resulted in changes to the Company’s accounting policies as compared to the most
recent annual financial statements prepared under Previous GAAP, wherever necessary. All accounting policies and applicable Ind
AS have been applied consistently and retrospectively throughout the periods, including the previous financial year presented and
the Ind AS opening balance sheet as at 1st April, 2016 (Transition Date). The resulting difference between the carrying amounts
under Ind AS and Previous GAAP as on the Transition Date has been recognised directly in Retained Earnings. An explanation of the
effect of the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS on the Company’s equity and profit is provided in note no 54.
In preparing these financial statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions from retrospective application
of certain requirements under Ind AS, as explained below:
a. Exemptions from retrospective application:
Deemed cost of property, plant and equipment: The Company has opted to continue with the carrying value for all of its property,
plant and equipment as recoginsed in the previous GAAP financial statements as their deemed cost at the transition date to Ind AS
(i.e. 1st April, 2016).
Business combinations: The Company has opted to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS, i.e. 1st April,
2016 onwards. However, previous GAAP balances relating to assets and liabilities acquired under business combinations entered
into before transition date, have been carried forward without any adjustments.
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries and associates: On the transition date, the Company has opted to carry investments in
equity shares of subsidiaries and associates at their deemed cost, i.e. previous GAAP carrying amount.
Leases: For arrangements entered into prior to 1st April, 2016, the Company has assessed all arrangements for embedded leases
based on conditions prevailing as at the date of transition (i.e. 1st April, 2016).
b. Exceptions from full retrospective application:
Estimates:Upon an assessment of the estimates made under Previous GAAP, the Company has concluded that there was no necessity to revise such estimates under Ind AS, except where revision in estimates was necessitated as required by Ind AS. The estimates
used by the Company to present the amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions existing as at 1st April, 2016, the date of
transition to Ind AS and as at 31st March, 2017 and 31st March, 2018.
(iii) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for the items that have been
measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS.
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(iv) Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value
measurement of a non- financial asset takes in to account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy in which they fall.
(v) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:
The preparation of these Financial Statements requires management judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies, the accounting disclosures made and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods effected pursuant to such revision.
1.3

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently throughout the periods presented in these financial statements.

1.3.1

Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measurement:
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
expenses directly attributable in bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management.
Expenditure directly attributable in bringing the asset to the location during construction / erection period is included under ‘Capital
Work-in-Progress’ and is allocated to the respective property, plant and equipment on completion of construction / erection.
The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, upon sale and disposition of the assets
and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Assets subjected to operating leases are included in Property,Plant and Equipment.
Depreciation:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment has been provided using straight line method over their useful lives and in the manner
prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. However, in respect of certain assets including assets given on the operating
lease, depreciation is provided as per the useful lives as assessed by the management supported by technical advice ranging from 9
to 24 years for plant and machinery.

1.3.2

Investment property
Investment property is property held either to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of
the business. Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, upon sale, disposition and withdrawal
from permanent use of the assets and when no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. The resultant gains or losses
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

1.3.3

Intangible Assets:
Intangible assets are recognised, if the future economic benefits attributable to the assets are expected to flow to the Company and
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The same are amortised over the expected duration of benefits. Such intangible assets are
measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.
Specialised software is amortised over a period of five years from the year of installation.

1.3.4

Research and Development Cost:
Revenue expenditure on research and development is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss and capital expenditure is added
to property, plant and equipment.
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1.3.5

Lease:
Lease is classified as an operating lease, when substantial risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred - rentals thereon are
recognised as expense over the lease term.
Leases under which, the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. When
acquired, such assets are capitalised at fair value or present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease,
whichever is lower. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability, so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss.

1.3.6

Foreign currency transactions and translation:
The functional currency of the company is Indian rupee (`). Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rates prevailing
on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at exchange
rate prevailing at the year end. Exchange differences arising on actual payments / realisations and year end translations including on
forward contracts are recognized within Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.3.7

Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost is computed on weighted average basis. Finished goods and
process stock include cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

1.3.8

Borrowing cost:
Borrowing Cost is charged to statement of profit and loss except borrowing cost meant for acquisition of qualifying assets, which is
capitalised, using the effective interest method till the date of commercial use.

1.3.9

Employee benefits:
(a) Defined-contribution plans
Contributions to the Employees’ Regional Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, Employees Pension Scheme and Employees’ State
Insurance are recognised as defined contribution plan and charged as expenses during the period in which the employees perform
the services.
(b) Defined benefit plan
Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity and Leave Encashment are considered as defined benefit plan and determined on an
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains or losses through remeasurement
of the net obligation of a defined benefit liability or asset are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Such re-measurements are
not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.
The Provident Fund Contribution other than contribution to Employees’ Regional Provident Fund, is made to Trust administered by the
trustees. The interest rate to the members of the Trust shall not be lower than the statutory rate declared by the Central Government
under Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952. The Employer shall make good deficiency, if any.
(c) Short term employee benefits
Short term benefits are charged off at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related service is rendered.

1.3.10 Income tax:
Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the
extent it relates to items directly recognised in Equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.
a) Current tax: Current Tax is the amount of tax payable on the estimated taxable income for the current year as per the provisions of
Income Tax Act, 1961.
b) Deferred tax: Deferred Tax is recognised for temporary differences. However, Deferred Tax Asset is recognised to the extent that, it
is probable that taxable income will be available against which the same can be realised.
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1.3.11 Provisions:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the present value of best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Contingent
liabilities (if material) are disclosed by way of notes to accounts. Contingent assets if any, are disclosed in financial statements.
1.3.12 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.
(a) Financial assets
Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, loans, investments in securities and other eligible
current and non-current assets.
At initial recognition, all financial assets are measured at fair value. Such financial assets are subsequently classified under one of the
following three categories according to the purpose for which they are held. The classification is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period.
Financial assets at amortised cost:
At the date of initial recognition, these financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and interest on principal
amount outstanding on specified dates. These financial assets are intended to be held until maturity. Therefore, they are subsequently
measured at amortised cost by applying the Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”) method to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
The EIR amortisation is included as interest income in the statement of profit and loss.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:
At the date of initial recognition, these financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and interest on principal
amount outstanding on specified dates, as well as held for selling. Therefore, they are subsequently measured at each reporting
date at fair value, with all fair value movements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Interest income calculated using
the EIR method, impairment gain or loss and foreign exchange gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is reclassified from the OCI
to Statement of Profit and Loss.
Financial assets at fair value through statement of profit and loss:
At the date of initial recognition, financial assets that are held for trading, or which are measured neither at amortised cost nor at
fair value through OCI. Therefore, they are subsequently measured at each reporting date at fair value, with all fair value movements
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries and associates are valued at cost.
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers
the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’.
The Company assesses impairment based on the Expected Credit Losses (“ECL”) model to all its financial assets except equity instruments
measured at fair value and financial assets measured on Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (“FVTPL”) basis.
(b) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include long-term and short-term loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and other eligible current and
non-current liabilities.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and other payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified under one of the following two categories:
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost by applying the EIR method to the gross
carrying amount of the financial liability. The EIR amortisation is included in finance expense in the statement of profit and loss.
Financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss:
Financial liabilities which are designated as such on initial recognition, or which are held for trading. Fair value gains / losses attributable
to changes in own credit risk is recognised in OCI. These gains / losses are not subsequently transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss.
All other changes in fair value of such liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
1.3.13 Derivative financial instruments:
Derivative instruments such as forward currency contracts are used to hedge foreign currency risks. Premium in respect of forward
contracts is recognised over the life of contract. Gain or loss arising on remeasuring derivative instruments identified as effective fair
value hedges and ineffective cash flow hedges is accounted for in the statement of profit and loss.
1.3.14 Revenue:
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been passed on to buyer. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, including excise duty, but net of returns, allowances, trade discounts and volume
discounts and sales tax / VAT / GST etc.
Inter-unit transfer of goods for captive consumption are included in respective heads of accounts to reflect the true working. Any
unrealised profits on unsold stock is not considered for valuing the inventory. This has no impact on the profitability.
Rental income from investment property is recognized as part of the other non operating income in the statement of profit and loss
on a straight line basis over the term of the lease except where the rentals are structured to increase in line with the expected general
inflation.
Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment is
established.
Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method.
1.3.15 Government Grants:
Grants and subsidies from the Government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant / subsidy will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Revenue grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Capital Grants
relating to specific assets are recognised in the Balance Sheet as deferred income and credited in statement of profit and loss on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the related asset.
Export incentives are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
1.3.16 Impairment
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipments, intangible assets and investment property are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date to assess impairment if any, based on internal / external factors. An asset is treated as impaired, when the carrying cost of asset or
cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable value, being higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment
loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed, if there has been an improvement in recoverable amount.
1.3.17 Earnings per share (EPS):
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity holders of the company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
1.3.18 Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and at bank, cheques on hand and remittances in transit for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments.
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NON CURRENT ASSETS
2

` in Lacs

Property, plant and equipment
Gross Value
Particulars

As at

Additions

01.04.2017
Land - Freehold
Land - Leasehold
Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Furniture and Fixtures
Vehicles
Office Equipments
Total

Depreciation

Net Value

Sales /

As at

As at

For the

Sales /

As at

As at

As at

Adjustments

31.03.2018

01.04.2017

year

Adjustments

31.03.2018

31.03.2018

31.03.2017

2,674.99

-

-

2,674.99

-

-

-

-

2,674.99

2,674.99

(2,654.65)

(20.34)

-

(2,674.99)

-

-

-

-

(2,674.99)

(2,654.65)

331.37

-

-

331.37

17.88

3.69

-

21.57

309.80

313.49

(163.66)

(167.71)

-

(331.37)

(16.08)

(1.80)

-

(17.88)

(313.49)

(147.58)

7,385.22

660.81

-

8,046.03

2,098.54

391.88

-

2,490.42

5,555.61

5,286.68

(7,188.13)

(197.09)

-

(7,385.22)

(1,709.75)

(388.79)

-

(2,098.54)

(5,286.68)

(5,478.38)

41,037.31

2,972.62

347.39

43,662.54

21,811.24

2,967.64

318.91

24,459.97

19,202.57

19,226.07

(39,343.17)

(1,964.78)

(270.64)

(41,037.31)

(19,126.92)

(2,919.14)

(234.82)

(21,811.24)

(19,226.07)

(20,216.25)

1,043.78

55.02

11.41

1,087.39

753.36

73.63

9.58

817.41

269.98

290.42

(958.32)

(96.85)

(11.39)

(1,043.78)

(684.87)

(76.90)

(8.41)

(753.36)

(290.42)

(273.45)

470.03

238.82

56.97

651.88

174.22

84.66

47.51

211.37

440.51

295.81

(465.90)

(54.11)

(49.98)

(470.03)

(148.74)

(64.92)

(39.44)

(174.22)

(295.81)

(317.16)

1,491.11

132.51

18.50

1,605.12

930.09

169.99

17.37

1,082.71

522.41

561.02

(1,311.55)

(190.77)

(11.21)

(1,491.11)

(795.84)

(144.77)

(10.52)

(930.09)

(561.02)

(515.71)

54,433.81

4,059.78

434.27

58,059.32

25,785.33

3,691.49

393.37

29,083.45

28,975.87

28,648.48

(52,085.38)

(2,691.65)

(343.22)

(54,433.81)

(22,482.20)

(3,596.32)

(293.19)

(25,785.33)

(28,648.48)

(29,603.18)

Figures in brackets represent amounts pertaining to previous year.
a) Land, buildings and plant & equipment transferred under the Scheme of Amalgamation during the year 2006-07 were revalued as at 31st August 1985 and as at 31st March 1995.
The revaluation in respect of factory, service buildings and plant and equipment was further updated as at 31st March 1998 based on current replacement cost by a valuer and as a
result, book value of the said assets had been increased by ₹ 2990.53 lacs.
b) Includes capitalisation of finance cost - Plant and equipment ₹ 1.27 lacs (Previous year ₹ 0.27 lac).
c) Plant and equipment includes certain equipment ₹ 10,200 lacs (Previous year ₹ 10,200 lacs) given on lease (Refer Note 38).
3

Investment Property
Gross Value
Particulars

As at

Additions

01.04.2017
Land - Freehold
Buildings
Total

Depreciation

Net Value

Sales /

As at

As at

For the

Sales /

As at

As at

As at

Adjustments

31.03.2018

01.04.2017

year

Adjustments

31.03.2018

31.03.2018

31.03.2017

5.75

-

-

5.75

-

-

-

-

5.75

5.75

(5.75)

-

-

(5.75)

-

-

-

-

(5.75)

(5.75)

37.94

-

-

37.94

32.93

0.12

-

33.05

4.89

5.01

(37.94)

-

-

(37.94)

(32.81)

(0.12)

-

(32.93)

(5.01)

(5.13)

43.69

-

-

43.69

32.93

0.12

-

33.05

10.64

10.76

(43.69)

-

-

(43.69)

(32.81)

(0.12)

-

(32.93)

(10.76)

(10.88)

Figures in brackets represent amounts pertaining to previous year.
4

Other Intangible assets
Gross Value
Particulars

As at

Additions

01.04.2017
Software
Trademark License
Total

Amortisation

Net Value

Sales /

As at

As at

For the

Sales /

As at

As at

As at

Adjustments

31.03.2018

01.04.2017

year

Adjustments

31.03.2018

31.03.2018

31.03.2017

709.62

9.21

0.62

718.21

549.75

49.84

0.61

598.98

119.23

159.87

(661.55)

(48.07)

-

(709.62)

(480.08)

(69.67)

-

(549.75)

(159.87)

(181.47)

501.35

-

-

501.35

500.89

-

-

500.89

0.46

0.46

(501.35)

-

-

(501.35)

(500.60)

(0.29)

-

(500.89)

(0.46)

(0.75)

1,210.97

9.21

0.62

1,219.56

1,050.64

49.84

0.61

1,099.87

119.69

160.33

(1,162.90)

(48.07)

-

(1,210.97)

(980.68)

(69.96)

-

(1,050.64)

(160.33)

(182.22)

Figures in brackets represent amounts pertaining to previous year.
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` in Lacs

5

Financial Assets - Investments [Non - Current (Other than trade)]
Particulars

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

As at 01.04.2016

Numbers

Amount

Numbers

Amount

Numbers

Amount

Southern Spinners and Processors Ltd. (` 10 each)

50,50,000

2,055.00

50,50,000

2,055.00

50,50,000

2,055.00

Modern Cotton Yarn Spinners Ltd. (` 10 each)

30,50,000

1,555.00

30,50,000

1,555.00

30,50,000

1,555.00

3,01,989

30.20

3,01,989

30.20

3,01,989

30.20

50,500

5.05

50,500

5.05

50,500

5.05

7,123

8,016.70

7,123

8,016.70

7,123

8,016.70

2,74,940

27.49

2,74,940

27.49

2,74,940

27.49

52,000

5.20

52,000

5.20

52,000

5.20

10,00,000

110.97

10,00,000

118.28

10,00,000

116.32

15,790

0.16

15,790

0.16

15,790

0.16

10

0.01

10

0.01

10

0.01

1

-

1

-

1

-

JK Paper Ltd. (` 10 each)

-

-

2,78,37,500

13,460.45

JK Lakshmi Cement Ltd. (` 5 each)

-

-

1,02,59,400

5,001.46

JK Tyre & Industries Ltd. (` 2 each)

-

-

1,80,00,000

3,600.00

Investment in Equity shares
Subsidiary companies (At cost)

BMF Investments Ltd. (` 10 each)
Acorn Engineering Ltd. (` 10 each)
Divyashree Company Private Ltd (` 10 each)
Associate Companies (At cost)
Dwarkesh Energy Ltd. (` 10 each)
PSV Energy Pvt. Ltd. (` 10 each)
Others (At fair value through OCI)
CliniRx Research Pvt. Ltd. (` 10 each)
Others (At cost)
Madura Coats Workers’ Co-operative Stores Ltd. (` 10 each)
Hari Shankar Singhania Elastomer and Tyre Research Institute
(` 100 each)
The Madurai District Pandian Consumers’ Co-operative
Wholesale Stores Ltd. ‘A’ Class Share (` 50 each)

Investment in preference shares (At fair value through P & L)
Dwarkesh Energy Ltd.(7% Optionally Convertible Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares, fully paid up) (` 100 each)

11,00,000

883.76

11,00,000

796.18

11,00,000

717.28

HSS Holdings Private Ltd (1% Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares) (` 100 each)

70,00,000

7,000.00

-

-

-

-

CliniRx Research Pvt. Ltd (8% Optionally Convertible Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares) (` 10 each)

15,00,000

150.00

15,00,000

150.00

15,00,000

Investment in preference shares (At Cost)

150.00

19,839.54

12,759.27

34,740.32

Aggregate amount of quoted investments

-

-

22,061.91

Market value of quoted investments

-

-

61,656.39

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

19,839.54

12,759.27

12,678.41

Aggregate provision for impairment in value of investments

-

-

-

Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation, 1,80,589 (Previous year 209589) Shares of Bengal & Assam Company Ltd (BACL) are held in the name
of a Trustee on behalf of the Company, being Subsidiary of BACL against their holding in Netflier Finco Ltd. Accordingly, the amount against the
said shares is shown under Other Financial Asset (Non Current) ` 3790.47 Lacs.j
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`

As at
31.03.2018
6

As at
31.03.2017

in Lacs

As at
01.04.2016

Loans (Non-Current)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans to related party

7

8

22,000.00

22,000.00

-

22,000.00

22,000.00

-

Security deposits

457.33

344.15

467.23

Other receivables

3,794.91

3,587.56

996.23

4,252.24

3,931.71

1,463.46

171.11

205.47

455.98

13.26

13.26

13.26

384.53

364.44

417.73

568.90

583.17

886.97

1,682.24

1,278.87

1,261.10

Work-in-progress

527.73

531.33

409.11

Finished goods **

Other Financial Assets (Non- Current)

Other Non - Current Assets
Capital advances
Balances with Government Authorities
Others

9

Inventories (Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Raw materials*

3,756.30

2,713.29

2,256.97

Stock - in - trade

588.35

493.95

387.07

Stores and spares

279.45

240.37

183.11

6,834.07

5,257.81

4,497.36

*Includes raw materials in transit ` 306.46 lacs (As at 31st March, 2017 ` 186.78 lacs, As at 1st April 2016 ` 210.64 lacs).
**Includes finished goods in transit ` 387.08 lacs (As at 31st March, 2017 ` 122.91 lacs, As at 1st April 2016 ` Nil).
10

Trade receivables (Unsecured)
Considered good
Doubtful
Less : Allowance for Bad and Doubtful debts

12,227.98

10,666.48

11,184.49

26.15

26.15

47.53

(26.15)

(26.15)

(47.53)

12,227.98

10,666.48

11,184.49
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`

As at
31.03.2018
11

As at
31.03.2017

in Lacs

As at
01.04.2016

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

4.43

3.00

4.76

Current accounts

135.22

144.88

111.67

Savings accounts

-

0.04

0.04

139.65

147.92

116.47

Current accounts (Deposit repayment reserve)

327.15

100.79

183.03

Margin money deposit against bank guarantee

275.24

181.37

162.47

Balances with banks

12

Other bank balances

Earmarked balance for unpaid dividend

13

14

0.03

-

-

602.42

282.16

345.50

Security Deposits

22.40

209.77

11.98

Loans to Employees

43.31

39.18

41.45

Receivable from related party

12.52

11.35

103.96

Other receivables

15.48

20.24

27.88

93.71

280.54

185.27

3,984.81

2,947.22

2,050.51

3,984.81

2,947.22

2,050.51

2,605.03

2,375.79

2,296.42

234.95

321.11

27.85

-

124.47

-

Other financial assets

Current tax assets (Net)
Advance income-tax (Net of Provision ` 3866.75 lacs) (As at 31st
March 2017 ` 2629.96 lacs, As at 1st April 2016 ` 1959.19 lacs)

15

Other Current Assets
Balances with Government Authorities
Export benefit receivable
Interest accrued but not due from related party
Other advances
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475.82

326.39

374.49

3,315.80

3,147.76

2,698.76
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`

in Lacs

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
16

Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
Non - Current
Particulars

Current *

As at
31.03.2018

As at
31.03.2017

As at
01.04.2016

As at
As at
As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.2016

6,702.27

7,608.36

9,147.92

1,916.48

2,475.09

3,777.04

Fixed Deposits

2,891.95

3,585.17

2,157.67

1,861.90

371.20

499.84

Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares

7,000.00

-

-

-

-

-

16,594.22

11,193.53

11,305.59

3,778.38

2,846.29

4,276.88

Secured Loans
Term loans
Banks
Unsecured

* Payable during next 12 months
(i)

Term loan of ` 3362.85 lacs from a bank secured by way of first charge on certain specified assets including equitable
mortgage of specified immovable assets of the company and paripassu first charge on the entire current assets of the
company along with the banks extending working capital facilities, is repayable in 16 equal quarterly instalments and balance
` 56.70 lacs as 17th instalment.

(ii)

Term loan of ` 1974.45 lacs from a bank secured by way of first charge on certain specifed movable fixed assets of the
company, repayable in 16 equal quarterly instalments.

(iii) Term loan of ` 3281.45 lacs from a bank secured by way of first charge on certain specifed movable fixed assets of the
company, repayable in 15 equal quarterly instalments and balance ` 210.42 lacs as 16th instalment.
(iv)

Fixed Deposit of ` 1833.30 lacs and ` 1058.65 lacs aggregating ` 2891.95 lacs are due for repayment in 2019-20 and
2020-21 respectively.

(v)

During the year 2017-18, cumulative redeemable preference shares were issued at par value of `.100 per share redeemable
in five equal installments alongwith 4% premium on redemption including coupon rate (1%) at the end of each of 6th / 7th /
8th / 9th / 10th year, i.e., from the date of allotment 26th April 2017.
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` in Lacs

As at
31.03.2018
17

As at
01.04.2016

Other financial liabilities
Trade deposits

1,558.71

1,421.55

1,270.02

Deferred payment liabilities

4,855.43

6,619.23

7,578.95

94.64

79.31

61.38

6,508.78

8,120.09

8,910.35

Others
18

As at
31.03.2017

Non-Current Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Leave Encashment

19

276.59

203.97

194.68

276.59

203.97

194.68

2,001.23

2,089.49

2,299.98

Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, Plant and Equipment and Others
Deferred tax assets:
Expenses / Provision Allowable

20

(200.40)

(159.63)

1,889.09

2,140.35

606.80

561.16

312.78

606.80

561.16

312.78

4,295.55

4,548.15

5,119.27

Other Non - Current liabilities
Other liabilities

21

(152.56)
1,848.67

Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
Secured
Working capital borrowings from banks
Unsecured
Banks

1,034.04

783.20

804.47

Related parties

-

-

1,000.00

Fixed deposits

178.10

155.95

214.70

5,507.69

5,487.30

7,138.44

a)

Working Capital borrowings from banks is secured by hypothecation and by first charge on stocks and book debts,
etc., both present & future and by second charge on the immovable assets of the Company, on paripassu basis with
other banks. Buyer’s credit ` 359.49 lacs (As at 31st March 2017 ` 75.57 lacs, As at 1st April 2016 ` 443.41 lacs) is
secured by subservient charge on current assets.

b)

Unsecured loans from banks include Buyer’s credit outstanding ` 1034.04 lacs. (As at 31st March 2017 ` 783.20 lacs,
As at 1st April 2016 ` 804.47 lacs).
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` in Lacs

As at
31.03.2018
22

As at
31.03.2016

Financial Liabilities - Trade payables
Payable to related parties
Other payables (Refer Note 39)

23

As at
31.03.2017

240.10

249.43

374.13

7,979.09

6,504.55

6,331.22

8,219.19

6,753.98

6,705.35

1,916.48

2,475.09

3,777.04

1,861.90

371.20

499.84

Financial Liabilities - Others
Current maturities of long term debt
Secured
Term loans - Banks
Unsecured
Fixed deposits
Others
Deferred payment liabilities

1,763.80

959.72

906.73

Employee payables

1,154.22

1,400.79

1,348.20

167.16

198.48

712.49

0.03

-

-

Unclaimed fixed deposits and interest accrued
thereon*

19.52

31.09

52.93

Interest accrued and due on deposits

15.74

14.54

13.58

Capital payables
Unclaimed dividend

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Other payables

2.84

2.37

3.30

1,805.21

1,464.78

1,542.93

8,706.90

6,918.06

8,857.04

96.52

69.18

*Investor Education & Protection Fund will be credited as and when due.
24

Current Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity
Leave encashment

25

97.99
47.35

18.17

18.83

145.34

114.69

88.01

847.98

640.31

593.99

94.73

99.62

93.30

Other Current liabilities
Government and other statutory dues
Advance from customers
Rent advance

93.42

93.42

93.42

1,036.13

833.35

780.71
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`

2017-18
26

2016-17

Revenue from Operations
Sale of products

65,210.30

64,670.55

(803.53)

(839.23)

64,406.77

63,831.32

362.57

549.82

64,769.34

64,381.14

1,692.90

554.26

196.45

-

Fair value changes in preference shares

87.58

78.90

Dividend income from long term investments

24.44

638.96

1,993.52

2,047.88

125.60

146.42

4,120.49

3,466.42

2,713.29

2,256.97

Work in progress

531.33

409.11

Stock-in-trade (Engineering and other miscellaneous
products)

493.95

387.07

3,738.57

3,053.15

3,756.30

2,713.29

Work in progress

527.73

531.33

Stock-in-trade (Engineering and other miscellaneous
products)

588.35

493.95

Less : Inter division transfer
Other operating revenues

27

in Lacs

Other Income
Interest income from short-term deposits and loans
Profit on sale of investments

Other non operating income
Lease rent
Others

28

Changes in inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress
Opening stock
Finished goods

Closing stock
Finished goods

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Stocks
Less: Adjustments for differential Excise Duty
Total (Increase)/Decrease in Stocks
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4,872.38

3,738.57

(1133.81)

(685.42)

(535.23)

25.39

(1,669.04)

(660.03)
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`

2017-18

29

Employees’ welfare & other Benefits
Contribution to Provident and other Funds

8,027.57

681.53

579.20

443.38

425.63

9,715.59

9,032.40

2,512.14

2,817.71

Other Borrowing Costs

27.64

44.37

Net (Gain) / Loss on Foreign Currency transactions

88.12

(22.56)

2,627.90

2,839.52

3,691.60

3,596.44

49.84

69.97

3,741.44

3,666.41

Power & Fuel

2,769.88

2,614.87

Less : Inter division transfer

(803.53)

(839.23)

1,966.35

1,775.64

3,331.80

2,873.45

Depreciation and amortization expenses
Depreciation on Tangible Assets
Amortization of Intangible Assets

32

8,590.68

Finance costs
Interest Expenses

31

2016-17

Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and Wages

30

in Lacs

Other expenses

Consumption of stores and Spares
Repairs to Machinery

876.43

771.56

Repairs to Buildings

308.46

407.33

Rent

303.86

293.41

Rates & taxes
Freight & Transportation
Insurance
Professional Charges

226.01

284.86

1,409.88

1,157.79

107.58

111.75

1,314.13

927.69

143.61

121.36

1,650.11

1,469.74

Exchange Difference (Net)

22.39

96.00

Loss on assets sold / scrapped (Net)

20.21

21.71

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
Travelling expenses

Miscellaneous Expenses

3,123.51

2,816.19

14,804.33

13,128.48
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` in Lacs
33

Capital commitments (Net of advances) ` 1212.62 lacs (Previous year ` 791.45 lacs) and other commitments Nil
(Previous year Nil).

34

Contingent liabilities in respect of claims not accepted and not provided for ` 954.40 lacs (Previous year ` 739.66 lacs).
Details thereof are, Excise duty matters in appeal ` 487.48 lacs, Service tax matters in appeal ` 36.06 lacs Sales tax matters
in appeal ` 226.70 lacs and other matters ` 204.16 lacs (Previous year : ` 64.90 lacs, ` 29.40 lacs, ` 449.96 lacs & ` 195.40
lacs respectively). In respect of certain disallowances and additions made by the Income tax Authorities, appeals are
pending before the Appellate Authorities and adjustment, if any, will be made after the same are finally settled.

35

Capital work-in-progress includes Machinery in stock / transit, construction / erection materials and the following
pre-operative expenses pending allocation.
2017-18
2016-17
Employee benefit expenses
Consumption of stores & spares
Finance Costs
Travelling expenses
Less : Transferred to Property, Plant and Equipment

36

22.90
18.75
1.27
4.90
47.82
1.27
46.55

-

Expenditure on In-house Research and Development (R&D) activities during
the year:
Revenue expenditure (included in respective revenue accounts)
Capital expenditure (except land and building)

1,044.16
32.41
1,076.57

842.83
13.71
856.54

37

Forward contracts for hedging receivables ` Nil - USD Nil (Previous year ` 156.26 lacs - USD 2.25 lacs). Foreign currency
exposure unhedged net receivable ` 6.75 lacs - GBP 0.07 lacs (Previous year ` 553.39 lacs - USD 8.64 lacs) and net payable
` 1395.90 lacs - USD 21.22 lacs, ` 635.64 lacs - Euro 7.75 lacs (Previous year net payable ` 338.40 lacs - Euro 4.80 lacs
and ` 4.95 lacs - GBP 0.06 lacs).

38

The Company has given certain specified Property, plant and equipment on operating lease basis which is cancelable at
the option of lessee.

39

The details of amounts outstanding under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)
to the extent of information available with the Company is as : (i) Principal & interest amount due and remaining unpaid
as at 31.03.2018 Nil (Previous year Nil),(ii) Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year Nil (Previous year
Nil) and (iii) Interest accrued and unpaid as at 31.03.2018 Nil (Previous year Nil)

40

Deferred payment liabilities represent amount payable against certain Property, plant and equipment.

41

The Company has not provided diminution in the value of certain long term strategic investments, since in the opinion of
the Board, such diminution in their value is temporary in nature, considering the inherent value, nature of investment, the
investees’ assets and expected future cash flow from such investments.

42

Amount paid to auditors
Statutory Auditors
Audit fee
Taxation
Certificates / other services
Reimbursement of expenses *
* Includes amount reimbursed to erstwhile auditors
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2017-18
7.00
0.75
0.55
4.10
12.40

2016-17
7.00
0.75
0.70
2.31
10.76
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2017-18

in Lacs
2016-17

5,796.14
2,483,066

6,014.47
2,483,066

`

43

44

Earnings per share
Profit for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders
Weighted average number of Equity Shares for Basic / Diluted EPS
Earnings per share of ` 10 each
- Basic / Diluted

( `)

233.43

(`)

242.22

Operating Segments
(i) Information about Business Segment
Company operates in a Single Primary Segment ( Business Segment ) i.e. Polymer.
(ii) Secondary Segments ( Geographical Segment )
Revenue
Within India
Outside India*

61,763.69
7,126.14
68,889.83

59,862.04
7,985.52
67,847.56

1,117.38
227.47
1,344.85

869.07
176.93
1,046.00

372.46
372.46

372.46
372.46

2,969.30
(2.16)
2,967.14

2,424.70
(227.22)
2,197.48

38.26

24.04

38.26

24.04

8,763.28
3,032.80
(249.42)
(76.45)
263.14
(2.93)
2,967.14
33.86%

8,211.95
2,841.99
(352.71)
(221.13)
183.41
(254.08)
2,197.48
26.76%

*No non current assets of the company are located outside India.
45

Dividends
The following dividends were declared and paid by the company during the year:
For the year ended March 31, 2018: ` 45 per share (March 31, 2017: ` 35 per share)
Dividend Distribution Tax thereon
The following dividends were proposed by the Board of Directors in their meeting subject
to approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and are not recognised as a
liability. Dividend would attract dividend distribution tax when declared or paid.
For the year ended March 31, 2018: ` 15 per share (March 31, 2017: ` 15 per share)

46

Income Tax
(A) Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Tax
Deferred Tax - Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(B) Income Tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Current Income tax on Re-measurement Losses on Defined Benefit Plans
(C) Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
Accounting Profit before Income Tax
At applicable Statutory Income tax rate @ 34.608%
In House R&D Expenses u/s 35 (2AB) & Contribution u/s 35 (1) (ii)
Exempt Income
Deferred Tax related to Property, Plant & Equipment
Others
Reported Income Tax Expense
Effective Tax Rate
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`

in Lacs

47 Employee Benefits
The disclosures required under Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits” notified in the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 are as given below:
Defined Benefit Plan

Leave Encashment
(Non Funded)
2017-18

I.

II.

III.

Change in the Present Value of Obligation
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the
beginning of the year
Current Service Cost
Past Service Cost
Interest Expense or Cost
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation
Benefit Paid
Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year
Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year
Investment Income
Employer’s Contribution
Benefits Paid
Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount recognised in
net interest Expenses
Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss *
Current Service Cost
Past Service Cost
Net Interest Income / (Cost) on the Net Defined Benefit
Liability / (Asset)
Expenses recognised in the Income Statement

IV. Other Comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation
Return on Plan Asset, excluding amount recognised in
net interest Expenses
Components of Defined Benefit Costs recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income
V.

Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate
Mortality
Salary Escalation

2016-17

2017-18

2016-17

222.13
50.82
12.01
151.83
(112.86)
323.93

213.51
32.50
13.35
56.12
(93.34)
222.14

942.93
96.14
41.75
65.87
(47.50)
(68.74)
1,030.45

771.96
89.24
55.90
172.22
(146.39)
942.93

112.86
(112.86)

93.34
(93.34)

846.41
64.48
96.52
(68.74)

702.78
61.97
69.18
(146.39)

-

-

(6.21)
932.46

158.87
846.41

50.82
-

32.50
-

96.14
41.75

89.24
-

12.01
62.83

13.35
45.85

65.87
203.76

55.90
145.14

151.83

56.12

(47.50)

172.22

-

-

(6.21)

158.87

151.83

56.12

(41.29)

13.35

7.58%

7.25%

7.58%

7.25%

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ultimate

5%

*Included under the head Employee benefits expense-Refer Note No. 29
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in Lacs
2013-14

`

Leave Encashment (Non Funded)

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

2014-15

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Surplus / (Deficit)
Experience adjustment on Plan Liabilities (Gain) / Loss
Experience adjustment on Plan Assets (Gain) / Loss

323.94
(323.94)
159.14
-

222.13
(222.13)
44.74
-

213.50
(213.50)
107.66
-

157.68
(157.68)
83.62
-

134.64
(134.64)
1.15
-

1,030.45
932.46
(97.99)
(25.65)
(6.21)

942.93
846.40
(96.53)
120.72
158.87

771.96
702.78
(69.18)
(170.77)
(3.35)

734.36
643.16
(91.20)
73.83
58.18

706.25
672.19
(34.06)
(21.90)
(3.83)

Grauity (Funded)
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Surplus / (Deficit)
Experience adjustment on Plan Liabilities (Gain) / Loss
Experience adjustment on Plan Assets (Gain) / Loss
Sensitivity Analysis
Leave Encashment (Non Funded)
Discount Rate (- / + 1%)
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%)
Attrition Rate (- / + 1% of attrition rates)

March 31,2018
March 31,2017
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
349.49
301.78
242.55
204.48
302.52
348.25
204.95
241.66
318.05
329.20
217.86
225.87

Gratuity (Funded)
Discount Rate (- / + 1%)
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%)
Attrition Rate (- / + 1% of attrition rates)

1,036.85
901.98
946.31

897.76
1,031.02
976.89

1,019.35
883.00
927.88

876.58
1,010.13
956.19

Sensitivities due to mortality are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.
a)

The expected return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mainly the composition of
the plan assets held, assessed risks of assets management, historical results of return on plan assets and the policy
for plan assets management.

b)

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

c)

Contributions to Pension Fund (trust) during the 12 months ended 31st March, 2018 of ` 51.91 lacs (Previous Year:
` 53.56 lacs) has been included under the head Employee Benefits Expense.

d)

Defined Contribution Plans
Employer’s Contributions to Provident and other Funds charged off during the 12 months ended 31st March, 2018 of
` 502.01 lacs (Previous Year: ` 441.54 lacs) has been included under the head Employee Benefits Expense.
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Related Parties

(A)

Particulars of Related parties
(i) Holding company

(iii) Associates :

Bengal & Assam Co. Ltd.

PSV Energy Pvt. Ltd. (PSVEPL)
Dwarkesh Energy Ltd (DEL)

(ii) Subsidiary companies :
Southern Spinners and Processors Ltd. (SSPL)

(iv) Fellow subsidiary companies :

Modern Cotton Yarn Spinners Ltd. (MCYSL)

LVP Foods Pvt. Ltd

BMF Investments Ltd.

Panchmahal Properties Ltd.

Acorn Engineering Ltd. (AEL)
Divyashree Company Private Ltd (DCPL)
(v) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Dr. Raghupati Singhania

Chairman

Shri Vikrampati Singhania

Managing Director

Shri Nagaraju Srirama

President &Director

Shri Harsh Pati Singhania

Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

Smt. Mamta Singhania

Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

Shri Surendra Malhotra

Independent Director

Shri H.V.Lodha

Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

Shri Bakul Jain

Independent Director

Shri Rahul Chandrakant Kirloskar

Independent Director

Shri V. Rengaswamy

Chief Financial Officer

Shri R. Vijayaraghavan

Company Secretary

(vi) Post Employment Benefit Plan entities:

(vii) Other related parties

J.K. Fenner Executive Staff Provident Fund

Hari Shankar Singhania Elastomer and Tyre
Research Institute (HASETRI)

J.K. Fenner (India) Ltd Gratuity Fund
J.K. Fenner Executive Staff Pension Fund
(B)

Transactions conducted with related parties in the ordinary course of business :
`

Nature of transactions

in Lacs

2017 - 18

2016 - 17

Inter corporate deposit repaid

-

1,000.00

Interest paid

-

43.29

Holding company
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`

Nature of transactions

in Lacs

2017-18

2016-17

Sale of Investments to BMF Investments Ltd.

-

22,061.91

Loan to BMF Investments Ltd.

-

22,000.00

ICD given and received back to / from BMF Investments Ltd.

5,000.00

-

Purchase of goods from MCYSL & SSPL

2,178.69

1,852.66

124.99

39.37

1,545.48

124.47

263.56

389.37

75.36

55.21

1.32

0.05

268.73

224.31

1,028.91

1,000.22

97.61

83.32

Subsidiary companies

Sale of goods to MCYSL & SSPL
Interest received from BMF Investments Ltd.
Other expenses - DCPL, SSPL & MCYSL
Associates
Purchase of goods from PSVEPL
Other related parties
Product testing
Contribution to Trusts
Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel
Short-term Employee Benefits
Post-employment Benefits*
Other Payments

* As the liabilities for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a
whole, the amounts pertaining to Key Management Personnel are not included above.
(C)

Outstanding balances

31.03.2018

31.03.2017

(240.10)

(249.43)

22,048.52

22,159.37

3.17

8.81

Amount receivable / (payable)
To subsidiary companies - SSPL
From subsidiary companies - DCPL, MCYSL & BMF Invt. Ltd.*
From associates - PSVEPL
* Includes security deposit of ` 36 lacs receivable from DCPL.
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` in Lacs

49

Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financial instruments of the company:
Particulars

As at 31.03.2018

(i) Financial Assets

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

As at 31.03.2017
Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

As at 01.04.2016
Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

At Amortised cost
- Trade Receivables

12,227.98

12,227.98

10,666.48

10,666.48

11,184.49

11,184.49

- Loans

22,000.00

22,000.00

22,000.00

22,000.00

-

-

- Other financial assets

4,345.95

4,345.95

4,212.25

4,212.25

1,648.73

1,648.73

- Cash & Cash Equivalents

139.65

139.65

147.92

147.92

116.47

116.47

- Other Bank Balances

602.42

602.42

282.16

282.16

345.50

345.50

111.14

111.14

118.45

118.45

22,178.40

22,178.40

8,033.76

8,033.76

946.18

946.18

867.28

867.28

47,460.90

47,460.90

38,373.44

38,373.44

36,340.87

36,340.87

25,880.29

25,880.29

19,527.12

19,527.12

22,720.91

22,720.91

8,219.19

8,219.19

6,753.98

6,753.98

6,705.35

6,705.35

11,437.30

11,437.30

12,191.86

12,191.86

13,490.51

13,490.51

45,536.78

45,536.78

38,472.96

38,472.96

42,916.77

42,916.77

At Fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income
- Investments *
At Fair value through Profit and Loss
- Investments *
Total
(ii) Financial Liabilities
At Amortised cost
- Borrowings
- Trade Payables
- Others
Total
* Refer Note 55 and 56.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
1. Cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current financial assets and liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
2. Other non-current receivables are evaluated by the company, based on parameters such as interest rates, individual creditworthiness
of the counterparty etc. Based on this evaluation, allowances are considered to account for the expected losses of these receivables.
As at end of each reporting year, the carrying amounts of such receivables, net of allowances (if any), are not materially different from
their calculated fair values.
3. Fair value of investments in quoted equity shares are based on quoted market price at the reporting date. The fair value of unquoted
Investments in preference shares are estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms
and remaining maturities.The fair value of unquoted investments in equity shares are estimated on net assets basis. (Refer Note 55 and 56).
4. Fair value of borrowings from banks and other non-current financial liabilities, are estimated by discounting future cash flows using
rates currently available for debt on similar terms and remaining maturities.
5. Fair value of derivatives are calculated using the appropriate variable parameters.
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Fair Value Hierarchy
All financial assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows:
Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets.
Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 - inputs that are not based on observable market data.
` in Lacs
Particulars
March 31, 2018
Financial Assets:
- Quoted Equity Shares
- Unquoted Equity Shares
- Unquoted Preference Shares
March 31, 2017
Financial Assets:
- Quoted Equity Shares
- Unquoted Equity Shares
- Unquoted Preference Shares
April 1, 2016
Financial Assets:
- Quoted Equity Shares
- Unquoted Equity Shares
- Unquoted Preference Shares

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

-

-

111.14
8,033.76

-

-

118.45
946.18

22,061.91
-

-

116.49
867.28

There has been no transfer among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year ended March 31, 2018.
50

The fair value of Investment property as at 31st March, 2018 is ` 3909.87 lacs (as at 31st March, 2017: ` 3915.57, as at 1st April, 2016:
` 3923.00 lacs) after considering the rental income from current leases and other assumptions that market participants would use while
pricing investment property under current market conditions.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Company’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks from its operations. The key financial risks include market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and commodity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Market Risk: Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises mainly three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as commodity
price risk.
Foreign Currency Risk: Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The company has obtained foreign currency borrowings and has foreign currency trade payables
and receivables and is therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk. After taking cognisance of the natural hedge, the company takes
appropriate hedges to mitigate its risk resulting from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rate(s).
Foreign currency Sensitivity: The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the foreign currency
exchange rate with all other variables held constant. The impact on company’s profit before tax due to changes in the currency exchange
rate is as follows:
` in Lacs
Particulars

USD
Euro
GBP

Change in
currency
exchange ratio

Effect
on Profit
before tax
for the
year ended
31.03.2018

Effect on
Profit before
tax for the
year ended
31.03.2017

Effect on
Profit before
tax for the
year ended
01.04.2016

+25

(5.31)

2.11

(0.30)

-25

5.31

(2.11)

0.30

+25

(1.94)

(1.74)

(1.16)

-25

1.94

1.74

1.16

+25

0.02

(0.01)

0.03

-25

(0.02)

0.01

(0.03)
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Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Any changes in the interest rates environment may impact future rates of borrowing. The Company
mitigates this risk by regularly assessing the market scenario, finding appropriate financial instruments, interest rate negotiations with
the lenders for ensuring the cost effective method of financing.
Interest Rate Sensitivity: The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on financial
assets affected. With all other variables held constant, the company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on finance cost
with respect to our borrowing, as follows:
` in Lacs
Particulars

As at
31.03.2018

Change in Basis Points
Effect on Profit before Tax
Change in Basis Points
Effect on Profit before Tax

As at
31.03.2017

As at
01.04.2016

+25

+25

+25

(36.98)

(44.39)

(52.15)

-25

-25

-25

36.98

44.39

52.15

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment.
Commodity Price Risk: The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. Its operating activities require the
purchase of raw material and manufacturing of belts,oil seals and trading of engineering products including couplings and therefore,
requires a continuous supply of certain raw materials such as natural rubber, synthetic rubber, carbon black, fabric, etc. To mitigate the
commodity price risk, the Company has an approved supplier base to get best competitive prices for the commodities and to assess the
market to manage the cost without any compromise on quality.
Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that counterparty might not honor its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).
Trade Receivables: Customer credit risk is managed based on company’s established policy, procedures and controls. The company
assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. Credit
risk is reduced by receiving pre-payments and export letter of credit to the extent possible. The Company has a well defined sales policy
to minimize its risk of credit defaults. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and assessed. Impairment analysis is
performed based on historical data at each reporting date on an individual basis. However a large number of minor receivables are
grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.
Deposits with Bank: The deposits with banks constitute mostly the liquid investment of the company and are generally not exposed to
credit risk.
Security Deposits: The security deposits constitute mostly rental deposits paid by the company and are generally not exposed to credit risk.
Liquidity Risk: Liquidity risk is the risk, where the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The company’s approach is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

As at 31st March 2018
Particulars

Upto 3 years

Borrowings

18,573.84

` in Lacs
As at 1st April 2016

As at 31st March 2017

> 3 years

Upto 3 years

7,306.45

16,746.94

> 3 years

Upto 3 years

2,780.18

17,550.52

> 3 years
5,170.39

Trade Payables

8,219.19

-

6,753.98

-

6,705.35

-

Other Financial Liabilities

9,878.59

1,558.71

10,770.31

1,421.55

12,220.49

1,270.02

36,671.62

8,865.16

34,271.23

4,201.73

36,476.36

6,440.41

Total
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Capital Management
The company’s policy is to maintain an adequate capital base so as to maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development. Capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to equity holders. In order to
strengthen the capital base, the company may use appropriate means to enhance or reduce capital, as the case may be.
The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net Debt is calculated as
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
` in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

As at 01.04.2016

25,880.29

19,527.12

22,720.91

(139.65)

(147.92)

(116.47)

25,740.64

19,379.20

22,604.44

248.31

248.31

248.31

Other Equity

54,151.43

49,078.23

41,563.96

Total Capital

54,399.74

49,326.54

41,812.27

Capital and Net Debt

80,140.38

68,705.74

64,416.71

32.12%

28.21%

35.09%

Borrowings
Less: cash and cash Equivalents
Net Debt
Equity Share capital

Gearing Ratio
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Disclosure as per Ind AS 27 ‘’Separate Financial Statements’’.
The Company has not prepared the Consolidated Financial Statements by availing the exemption by virtue of Notification 742 (E ) dated
27th July 2016 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and paragraph 4 (a) of Ind AS 110 “Consolidated Financial Statements” read with
General instruction issued in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. Further, Bengal & Assam Company Limited which
has been incorporated in India (Holding company) will file Consolidated Financial Statements with the Registrar which are in compliance
with the applicable accounting standards.
A list of significant investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint venture are as follows:

Sl.
No

Name

Country of
Incorporation

Principal Activities

As at
31.03.2018

As at
31.03.2017

As at
01.04.2016

1

Southern Spinners and Processors Ltd.

India

Fabric Manufacturing

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

2

Modern Cotton Yarn Spinners Ltd.

India

Fabric Manufacturing

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

3

BMF Investments Ltd.

India

Core investment company

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

4

Acorn Engineering Ltd.

India

Operating company

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

5

Divyashree Company Private Ltd.

India

Investment company

61.00%

61.00%

61.00%

6

Dwarkesh Energy Ltd.

India

Power generation

27.49%

27.49%

27.49%

7

PSV Energy Pvt. Ltd.

India

Wind Power generation

26.00%

26.00%

26.00%
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54

in Lacs

Reconciliations
The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences arising as a result of
transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS in accordance with Ind AS 101:
– Equity as at 1st April, 2016
– Equity as at 31st March, 2017
– Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March 2017
Reconciliation of Equity as at 1st April, 2016
Note

Previous GAAP as
at 01.04.2016

Ind AS Impact

Ind AS as at
01.04.2016

29,586.07

17.11

29,603.18

277.32

-

277.32

-

10.88

10.88

182.22

-

182.22

2.86

-

2.86

ASSETS
(1)

Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

A

(b) Capital Work-In-Progress
(c) Investment Property

A

(d) Intangible Assets
(e) Intangible Assets under Development
(f) Financial Assets
i) Investments

B

35,106.72

(366.40)

34,740.32

ii) Other financial assets

C

1,506.86

(43.40)

1,463.46

(g) Other Non-Current Assets
(2)

C&D

469.24

417.73

886.97

67,131.29

35.92

67,167.21

4,497.36

-

4,497.36

11,184.49

-

11,184.49

ii) Cash and cash equivalents

116.47

-

116.47

iii) Other bank balances

345.50

-

345.50

Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
i) Trade receivables

iv) Other financial assets

C

(c) Current tax assets (net)
(d) Other Current Assets

C&D

Total Assets

173.29

11.98

185.27

2,050.51

-

2,050.51

2,638.65

60.11

2,698.76

21,006.27

72.09

21,078.36

88,137.56

108.01

88,245.57

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity

62 JK Fenner

E

248.31

-

248.31

41,516.81

47.15

41,563.96

41,765.12

47.15
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`

Note

in Lacs

Previous GAAP as
at 01.04.2016

Ind AS Impact

Ind AS as at
01.04.2016

11,439.98

(134.39)

11,305.59

8,910.54

(0.19)

8,910.35

194.68

-

194.68

LIABILITIES
(1)

Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings

F

ii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions

(2)

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

G

1,795.65

344.70

2,140.35

(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities

C

312.70

0.08

312.78

22,653.55

210.20

22,863.75

i) Borrowings

7,138.44

-

7,138.44

ii) Trade payables

6,705.35

-

6,705.35

iii) Other financial liabilities

8,857.04

-

8,857.04

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(b) Provisions

H

237.44

(149.43)

88.01

(c) Other Current Liabilities

C

780.62

0.09

780.71

23,718.89

(149.34)

23,569.55

88,137.56

108.01

88,245.57

Total Equity and Liabilities

The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
Reconciliation of Equity as at 31st March, 2017
Note

Previous GAAP as
at 31.03.2017

Ind AS Impact

Ind AS as at
31.03.2017

28,631.56

16.92

28,648.48

574.07

-

574.07

-

10.76

10.76

160.33

-

160.33

4.08

-

4.08

13,044.81

(285.54)

12,759.27

ASSETS
(1)

Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

A

(b) Capital Work-In-Progress
(c) Investment Property

A

(d) Intangible Assets
(e) Intangible Assets under Development
(f) Financial Assets
i) Investments

B

ii) Loans
iii) Other financial assets
(g) Other Non-Current Assets

22,000.00

-

22,000.00

C

1,569.53

2,362.18

3,931.71

C

218.73

364.44

583.17

66,203.11

2,468.76

68,671.87
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`

Previous GAAP as
at 31.03.2017

Ind AS Impact

Ind AS as at
31.03.2017

5,257.81

-

5,257.81

10,666.48

-

10,666.48

ii) Cash and cash equivalents

147.92

-

147.92

iii) Other bank balances

282.16

-

282.16

70.77

209.77

280.54

2,947.22

-

2,947.22

Note
(2)

in Lacs

Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
i) Trade receivables

iv) Other financial assets

C

(c) Current tax assets (net)
(d) Other Current Assets

C

Total Assets

3,091.81

55.95

3,147.76

22,464.17

265.72

22,729.89

88,667.28

2,734.48

91,401.76

248.31

-

248.31

46,268.15

2,810.07

49,078.22

46,516.46

2,810.07

49,326.53

11,308.35

(114.82)

11,193.53

8,120.28

(0.19)

8,120.09

203.97

-

203.97

1,849.84

39.25

1,889.09

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity

D

LIABILITIES
(1)

Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings

E

ii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions

(2)

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

F

(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities

C

561.08

0.08

561.16

22,043.52

(75.68)

21,967.84

i) Borrowings

5,487.30

-

5,487.30

ii) Trade payables

6,753.99

-

6,753.99

iii) Other financial liabilities

6,918.06

-

6,918.06

114.69

-

114.69

833.26

0.09

833.35

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(b) Provisions
(c) Other Current Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

C

20,107.30

0.09

20,107.39

88,667.28

2,734.48

91,401.76

The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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`

in Lacs

Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March 2017
Note

Previous
GAAP
2016-17

Ind AS Impact

Ind AS
2016-17

I Income
Revenue from operations
Other income

B&C

Total Income

64,381.14

-

64,381.14

3,370.37

96.05

3,466.42

67,751.51

96.05

67,847.56

21,955.62

-

21,955.62

(660.03)

-

(660.03)

II Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Changes in inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress
Purchase of stock in trade

3,585.91

-

3,585.91

Excise duty

6,087.30

-

6,087.30

Employee benefits expense

I

9,101.87

(69.47)

9,032.40

Finance costs

F

2,819.95

19.57

2,839.52

J

3,640.92

25.49

3,666.41

C&J

13,064.07

64.41

13,128.48

59,595.61

40.00

59,635.61

8,155.90

56.05

8,211.95

2,424.70

-

2,424.70

54.19

(281.41)

(227.22)

5,677.01

337.46

6,014.47

-

2,591.22

2,591.22

-

(69.47)

(69.47)

-

24.04

24.04

5,677.01

2,883.25

8,560.26

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Total expense
III Profit before tax
IV Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

G&I

V Profit for the year
VI Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Fair value changes in equity
Remeasurements losses on defined benefit plans

I

Tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to Statement
of profit and loss

I

VII Total Comprehensive Income for the year

The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this
note.
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Explanations for reconciliation of Balance sheet, Statemnt of profit & loss and Equity as previously reported under
previous GAAP to Ind AS
A.

Under Ind AS, Investment Properties are reclassified from Property, Plant and Equipment and presented separately and
interest free security deposit given are valued at amortised cost.

B.

Under Ind AS, Investments are valued at ‘Fair Value / Amortised Cost’, as the case may be, unlike under previous GAAP, where
non current investments were measured at cost less provision for diminution, if such a decline was other than temporary.

C.

Under Ind AS, financial assets & financial liabilities such as security deposits have been measured at fair value/ amortised
cost as the case may be, unlike under previous GAAP,where such assets & liabilties were stated at intial transaction value.

D.

Represents Deferred expenses, pursuant to valuation at fair value of Investments in certain Preference shares, which will be
debited to statement of profit and loss as expense over the period of such investments.
` in Lacs
Equity Reconciliation
As at
As at
Particulars
31.03.2017
01.04.2016
Equity under previous GAAP
46,516.46
41,765.12
Investment as per Amortised cost/ Fair value (refer note B)
218.44
139.54
Fair valuation of security deposits (refer note C)
(9.04)
(8.91)
Deferred Expenses (refer note D)
(133.21)
(89.69)
Equity Dividend and tax on dividend (refer note H)
149.43
Fair Valuation of Term Loans by amortized cost method using
effective interest rate (refer note F)
114.82
134.39
Deferred tax liability(Net) (refer note G)
(39.25)
(344.70)
Employee benefit expense (refer note I)
69.47
Net change in fair value of equity instruments (refer note B)
2,658.30
67.08
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (refer note I)
(69.47)
Equity as per Ind AS
49,326.53
41,812.27

E.

F.

Under Ind AS, borrowings are valued at amortised cost using effective interest rate method, unlike under previous GAAP,
where such borrowings were stated at initial transaction value.

G.

The additional Deferred Tax Liability / Asset has also been recognised due to different accounting treatment in respect of
certain items as per Ind AS.

H.

Under previous GAAP, Proposed Dividend was recognised as liability in the period to which it was related. Under Ind AS,
Proposed dividend is recognised as liability in the period in which it is approved by shareholders.

I.

Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS, the
actuarial gains and losses form part of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income. Consequently, the tax effect of the same has also been recognised in other comprehensive income
under Ind AS instead of the statement of profit and loss.

J.

As per Ind AS, revaluation reserve & capital reserve has been adjusted against retained earnings on transition. Subsequently
during 2016-17, depreciation & loss on sale of assets charged to revaluation reserve under previous GAAP has been reversed.
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There is no significant reconciliation items between cash flow prepared under Previous GAAP and prepared under Ind AS.
55 Pursuant to the scheme of re-arrangement, certain investments in associate companies of Holding Company were considered
for sale at carrying values for improving upon the liquidity / business growth duly compliant with applicable laws / regulations.
56 Fair value of investment in certain equity and preference shares are taken at cost since cost represents the best estimate of
fair value.
57 The provision for current tax represents income tax payable computed under substantive provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961.
58 With introduction of Goods and Service Tax Act 2017 w.e.f. 1st July 2017 Revenue from operations for current year are not
comparable with previous year, since sales in current year from 1st July 2017 are net of GST whereas Excise duty was included
in Revenue and formed part of expenses till 30th June 2017.
59 BMF Investment Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company is proposed to be merged with the Holding Company,
Bengal & Assam Company Limited, pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement,w.e.f 01.04.2017, which is pending for approval
of National Company Law Tribunal Chennai and Kolkata.
60 Standards issued but not yet effective
Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Amended Ind AS 115 was notified on 28th March 2018 and establishes a five step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers.The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
Ind AS.This standard will come into force from accounting period commencing on or after 1st April,2018.The Company is
evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial statements is being evaluated.
61 Previous year figures have been reclassified/regrouped/recast,wherever necessary.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
` in Lacs
Particulars
A

B

C

Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Finance cost (net of interest income)
Remeasurement on defined benefit plans charged to OCI
Fair value changes in non-current Investment
Amortisation of deferred power expenses
(Profit)/loss on sale of assets
Dividend received
Operating profit before working capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes (paid)
Net Cash from operating activities
Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Purchase of investment
Sale of investment
Deposit accounts with Banks
Dividend received
Net Cash used in investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Cumulative redeemable pref. shares
Proceeds of borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Loan given
Interest paid (net)
Increase /(decrease) in cash credit and public deposits (net)
Dividend paid (Including dividend tax)
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

Note :
1)
Figures in brackets are outflows.
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of :
2)
(a) Cash on hand
(b) Balances with banks
i) Current accounts
ii) Savings accounts
Total cash and cash equivalents

2017-18

2016-17

8,763.28

8,211.95

3,741.44
935.00
(110.54)
(87.58)
43.52
20.21
(24.44)
13,280.89
(1,576.26)
(1,204.35)
1,058.39
11,558.67
(4,006.89)
7,551.78

3,666.41
2,285.26
(69.47)
(78.90)
43.52
21.71
(638.96)
13,441.52
(760.45)
143.10
(933.51)
11,890.66
(3,321.41)
8,569.25

(4,341.23)
20.72
(7,000.00)
(320.26)
24.44
(11,616.33)

(2,787.18)
28.32
-

7,000.00
1,000.00

3,452.00

(2,224.26)
(941.64)
567.03
(1,344.85)
4,056.28
(8.27)
147.92
139.65

(7,334.36)
(22,000.00)
(2,283.77)
668.98
(1,046.00)
(28,543.15)
31.45
116.47
147.92

4.43

3.00

135.22
-

144.88
0.04

139.65

147.92

22,061.91
63.34
638.96
20,005.35
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AROUND THE YEAR 2017-18

AAPEX 2017 - Las Vegas

Aqua Culture - Gujarat

Rice Pro Tech - Burdwan

Auto Expo - Guwahati

Defence Expo - Chennai

Calcutta Belting Traders Association
meeting- Kolkata
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NEW PRODUCTS APPLICATION

Automotive Water Pumps

Scooter Belts

Single Cogged Belts

Automotive Engine Tractor Oil Seals

V Cool Pulley
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Double Cogged Belts

SERVICE TO THE SOCIETY

Eye screening Camp

Check Dam Construction

Cattle Health Camp

Single Teacher School

Sanitary napkin projects

Sanitary napkin projects
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